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Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT
The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Company is principally engaged in business of providing financial guarantee insurance.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
RM’000
61,890

Net profit for the financial year

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than
disclosed in the financial statements.
In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial year
were not substantially affected by any items, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS
The final single tier tax exempt dividend on 1,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to RM7,600,000.00
(0.76 sen net per ordinary share) in respect for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 was paid
to entitled shareholder of the Company on 31 May 2021.
The dividend has been accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained profit during the current
financial year.
The Directors have declared a final single tier dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2021 of 0.62 sen single tier per ordinary share amounting to dividend payable of
RM6,200,000. The final single tier dividend was approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February
2022.

ISSUE OF SHARE CAPITAL
There was no issue of new ordinary shares during the financial year.
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Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
DIRECTORS
The Directors in office during the financial year and during the period from the end of the financial
year to the date of this report are as follows:
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Choo Yoo Kwan @ Choo Yee Kwan
Elakumari Kantilal
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman
Faisal Ismail

Appointed on 16 June 2021

Appointed on 6 January 2021
Appointed on 25 May 2021 and
resigned on 19 November 2021
Retired on 10 May 2021
Retired on 22 August 2021

Suresh Kumar T.A.S Menon
Md Yusof Hussin

Md Yusof Hussin and Suresh Kumar T.A.S Menon retired on 22 August 2021 and 10 May 2021
respectively following the expiry of their directorship while Faisal Ismail being a nominee director of
Credit Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad (“CGC”) has been appointed on 25 May 2021
following the retirement of Suresh Kumar T.A.S Menon in May 2021. Subsequently, Faisal Ismail has
resigned on 19 November 2021 as a nominee director of CGC on the Board of Danajamin following
the completion of the acquisition by Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad ("BPMB") of Danajamin's
shares held by CGC and no Chairman was appointed subsequent to Md Yusof Hussin's retirement in
August 2021.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS
During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangement subsisted to which the Company is a
party, being arrangements with the object or objects of enabling the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive
any benefits (other than Directors’ remuneration, allowances and benefits-in-kind as disclosed in Note
26 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation
with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the
Director has a substantial financial interest.
According to the Register of Directors' Shareholdings, none of the Directors who held office as at the
end of the financial year had any interest in shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its related
corporations during the financial year.
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2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Introduction
The Company is the nation’s first Financial Guarantee Insurer, licensed under the Financial Services
Act, 2013 ("FSA"), regulated and supervised by Bank Negara Malaysia (“BNM”). The Company does
not have any subsidiary.
Following the completion of BPMB’s acquisition of all shares held by Minister of Finance
(Incorporated) and CGC, Danajamin became a wholly-owned subsidiary of BPMB effective 22
December 2021.
As a licensed entity, the Company adopts practices that are consistent with the policy document
issued by BNM on Corporate Governance (BNM/RH/PD029-9) ("CG Guidelines"). Through the
Company's policies and procedures as well as periodic audit reviews, the Board of Directors of
Danajamin Nasional Berhad ("Board") ensures that good governance is practised throughout the
Company in all aspect of its business dealings, and that integrity and transparency are displayed with
the objective of safeguarding shareholders' investments and ultimately enhancing shareholders'
value. The Board recognises that good corporate governance practices will undoubtedly contribute
towards the success of the Company and its overall performance.
Board Responsibilities and Oversight
The Board acknowledges its key responsibilities and is committed in ensuring that the principles of
good corporate governance are applied in all aspects of the Company’s operations.
Board Composition and Balance
The Board comprises of six (6) members, five (5) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one (1)
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.
Diversity in the Board's composition is essential to facilitate good decision making as this enables
different insights and perspectives to be harnessed. The Board comprises members with various
professional backgrounds including from the fields of finance, accounting, legal, and credit analysis,
all of whom bring in-depth and diverse experiences, expertise and perspectives to the Company's
operations.
Collectively, the Board brings a wide spectrum of business acumen, skills and perspectives
necessary for good decision-making process. The diversity and depth of knowledge offered by the
Board reflect the commitment of the Company to ensure effective leadership and oversight of the
Company's performance.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors provide unbiased and independent views to ensure the
strategies proposed by the Management are fully deliberated.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Composition and Balance (continued)
A brief profile of each Director is presented as follows:
1.

Choo Yee Kwan
(68 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Choo Yee Kwan was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Danajamin on 22
May 2018. He is the Chairman of the Board Risk Committee. He is a member of the Board
Remuneration and Nomination Committee and the Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme
Board Underwriting Committee. He is the Chairman and a member of the Board Underwriting
Committee until 25 March 2021 and 31 December 2021 respectively. He is also the Chairman
of the Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme Board Underwriting Committee until 30 June
2021 and a member of the Board Investment Committee until 26 February 2021.
Choo Yee Kwan was amongst the pioneer group of awardees to be conferred with an Associate
Fellowship by the Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers (“AICB”) (previously known as Institut
Bank-Bank Malaysia) in 1999. He was appointed to the Corporate Debt Restructuring
Committee (set up under the auspices of Bank Negara Malaysia) from 1999-2001. He also
served on the Education Committee of AICB for 14 years (2000-2014); and was re-appointed in
2016.
Out of a total of 38 years in the banking and risk management industry, Choo Yee Kwan had 16
years’ experience in “Chief Risk Officer” / “Chief Credit Officer” roles in three different banks
(including Maybank Group and OCBC Bank Malaysia).
Choo Yee Kwan was appointed as a member of the University Malaya Medical Centre
(“UMMC”) Ethics Committee for two years (2014-2015). He is a Chartered Banker and is
currently a Teaching Facilitator in the Asian Banking School.
Qualifications:
•
Degree in Economics (Hons.), University of Malaya
Degree in Law (Hons.), University of London
•
Barrister-at-Law (of Lincoln’s Inn), Bar of England and Wales
•
•
Chartered Banker, conferred jointly by the Chartered Banker Institute of the United
Kingdom and AICB Malaysia.
Present Directorship(s):
HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
•
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Composition and Balance (continued)
A brief profile of each Director is presented as follows: (continued)
2.

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
(67 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Danajamin on 23 August 2018. He is the Chairman of the Board Remuneration and Nomination
Committee. He is also a member of the Board Underwriting Committee, the Board Audit
Committee and the Board Investment Committee. He is also a member of the Danajamin
PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme Board Underwriting Committee until 30 June 2021.
He is the Founder Partner of Messrs Che Mokhtar & Ling. He has been an Advocate and
Solicitor of the High Court of Malaya since 1983 and was a Magistrate and Deputy Public
Prosecutor. He possesses more than 30 years of experience as a Legal Practitioner. He is a
Notary Public appointed by the Attorney General of Malaysia.
He was previously on the Board of Directors of Mass Rapid Transit Corporation Sdn Bhd.
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Laws (LLB), Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand
•
Bachelor of Arts (B.A.), Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand
•
Present Directorship(s):
Brilliant Heritage Sdn Bhd.
•
Malaysia Convention & Exhibition Bureau (MyCEB)
•
Universiti Sains Malaysia
•
•
USM University Hospital

3.

Elakumari Kantilal
(64 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Elakumari Kantilal was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Danajamin on
23 August 2018. She is the Chairman of the Board Audit Committee. She is a member of the
Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the Board Investment Committee and the
Board Underwriting Committee. She is also a member of the Board Risk Committee until 26
February 2021 and a Chairman of the Board Investment Committee until 21 April 2021.
She started her career with the Accountant General’s office in 1981 and served several
ministries during her tenure in civil service which, inter alia, included the Ministry of Agriculture
and Ministry of Finance’s Division on Monitoring Government owned enterprises.
She was actively involved in the establishment of Khazanah Nasional Berhad in 1994 and
remained as part of its core management team until she concluded her tenure in 2017 as
Director of Investment.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Composition and Balance (continued)
A brief profile of each Director is presented as follows: (continued)
3.

Elakumari Kantilal (continued)
(64 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
She has held a number of executive positions and directorships across the investment and
consultancy sectors. She previously sat on the Board of Directors of Opus International
Consultants Limited from August 2017 to December 2017, UEM Builders Berhad from January
2015 to February 2016 and TIME Engineering Berhad (now Dagang NeXchange Berhad) from
October 2001 to November 2013.
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Accounting, University Kebangsaan Malaysia
•
•
Master of Science in Finance and Accounting, University of East Anglia, United Kingdom
Member, Malaysian Institute of Accountants
•
International Institute for Management Development (IMD), Switzerland
•
Harvard’s Premier Business Management Programme.
•
Present Directorship(s):
TIME dotCom Berhad
•

4.

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
(44 years – Malaysian)
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab was appointed as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of
Danajamin Nasional Berhad on 1 November 2020. He is a member of the Board Underwriting
Committee, Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme Board Underwriting Committee, the
Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee and the Board Risk Committee.
He has served the Government of Malaysia under Ministry of Finance for 14 years. He is
currently the Deputy Director of Risk & Debt Section, Fiscal & Economics Division, Ministry of
Finance. Prior to his appointment to the division in 2017, Imri was appointed as Principal
Assistant Secretary in Strategic Investment Division of the same ministry from 2014. He started
his career in civil service in 2003 as Assistant Secretary in Economics & International Division,
Ministry of Finance.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Composition and Balance (continued)
A brief profile of each Director is presented as follows: (continued)
4.

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab (continued)
(44 years – Malaysian)
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Qualifications:
Bachelor of Accounting and Finance, Lancaster University, United Kingdom
•
•
Master in Islamic Finance, INCEIF, Kuala Lumpur
Present Directorship(s):
Urusharta Jamaah Sdn Bhd
•
•
GOVCO Holdings Berhad
UJ Estates (Holdings) Sdn Bhd
•
Lembaga Pembiayaan Perumahan Sektor Awam
•
Malaysia Wakala Sukuk Bhd
•
Malaysia Sukuk Global Bhd
•
Wakala Global Sukuk Bhd
•
Malaysia Sovereign Sukuk Bhd
•

5.

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman
(66 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Rosnah Dato’ Kamarul Zaman was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Danajamin on 6 January 2021. She is the Chairman of the Board Underwriting Committee and
the Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme Board Underwriting Committee. She is also a
member of the Board Risk Committee.
She has more than 25 years’ experience in banking and finance. During her career she has
covered the full spectrum of banking which includes consumer, commercial and corporate
banking as well as the non-banking functions of the various business and operational support
divisions in the bank.
Rosnah Dato’ Kamarul Zaman commenced her career as a Management Trainee with the
former Bank of Commerce in 1979, and left the bank in 2005. Her last appointment at the bank
was as Senior Executive Vice President heading the Banking Unit, responsible for the strategic
businesses of Consumer Banking, Commercial Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and
International Banking.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Composition and Balance (continued)
A brief profile of each Director is presented as follows: (continued)
5.

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman (continued)
(66 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
She was a founding member of the Board of Trustees of CIMB Foundation in 2007 and was
appointed as an Independent Director to the Board of CIMB Bank Berhad in 2012, and in 2014
as an Independent Director of CIMB Islamic Bank Berhad. She was a member of numerous
Board committees and was also Chairperson of the Board Risk and Compliance Committee and
also Chairperson of the Board Investment Committee. She retired on 18 January 2021 having
served the full term of nine years.
In 2011, Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman was appointed to the Board of Time Engineering
Berhad. She left the Board in 2013.
Qualifications:
•
Bachelor of Arts in Economics (Honours), University of Manchester, United Kingdom
Present Directorship(s)/Other appointment:
Trustee of CIMB Foundation
•
Tabung Haji Investment Panel
•

6.

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay
(61 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Danajamin on 16 June 2021. He is the Chairman of the Board Investment
Committee. He is also a member of the Board Risk Committee and Board Audit Committee.
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal has more than 30 years’ experience – spanning investment
companies, stock brokerage firms and stock and commodities exchanges. He began his career
with Citivest International as a corporate trader before moving on to being the Corporate Head
of Citivest International, in which he was responsible for operations in Australia, New Zealand
and the United States of America. Upon returning to Malaysia, Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal
served as the Chief Representative to South East Asia for Saitama International Investment
Bank.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Composition and Balance (continued)
A brief profile of each Director is presented as follows: (continued)
6.

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay (continued)
(61 years – Malaysian)
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
He assumed the role of Advisor to KPMG from 2003 to 2008 and was part of a United Nations
initiative under which he was assigned the task of restructuring the Central Bank of Iraq in
November 2003 with emphasis on the valuation of the new Iraqi Dinar. Tan Sri Datuk Seri
Rashpal was also a Special Advisor to Tenaga Nasional Berhad as well as a Member of the
Main Advisory Board of Malaysia Anti-Corruption Commission (MACC) from 2009 to 2015.
From 2015 to 2021, he served as a board member of the Inland Revenue, Malaysia (LHDNM).
He is the founder of the Knight Group of Companies, which now operates in Kuala Lumpur,
Penang, Sabah and Sarawak, with representative offices in India and the United Kingdom.
Qualifications:
Master in Corporate Finance, University of Liverpool
•
Member of Asian Institute of Chartered Banker
•
Member of United Nations Associations Malaysia
•
Present Directorship(s)/Other appointment:
Knight Capital Consortium Sdn Bhd
•
Knight Capital Sdn Bhd
•
Knight Properties Sdn Bhd
•
Knight Credit (UK) Ltd
•
Yayasan Toh Puan Zurina
•
Yayasan Tuanku Syed Sirajuddin
•
CVSKL Foundation
•
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board of Directors' Meetings
The Board meets at least six (6) times each financial year or more as circumstances dictate.
Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are scheduled in advance before the
commencement of the new financial year to enable the Directors to plan and accommodate the year’s
meetings into their schedules. The Board requires all members to devote sufficient time to effectively
discharge their duties and to attend at least 75% of the Board meetings.
Special meetings of the Board and Board Committee maybe convened to consider urgent proposals
or matters that require expeditious decisions or deliberations by the Board and/or the Board
Committees.
Agenda and Management Papers are distributed in advance for all Board and Board Committees so
that Directors have sufficient time to review to facilitate full discussion at the meetings. Agendas of
meetings that include, amongst others, minutes of meetings, comprehensive management reports,
project or investment proposals and supporting documents, will be disseminated to Directors prior to
the dates of the meetings. However, Management Papers that are deemed urgent may still be
submitted to the Company Secretary to be tabled at the meeting under any other matters subject to
the approval of the Chairman.
All issues raised, key deliberations, decisions and conclusions, including dissenting views made at
Board and Board Committee meetings are recorded in the minutes of meetings. Where the Board is
considering a matter in which a Director has an interest, the relevant Director must immediately
disclose the nature of his/her interest and abstain from participating in any discussion or decisionmaking on the subject matter.
The Board is advised and updated on statutory and regulatory requirements pertaining to its duties
and responsibilities. As and when the need arises, the Board is also provided with reports,
information papers and relevant trainings, where necessary, to ensure it is appraised on key
business, operational, corporate, legal, regulatory and industry matters.
Whenever necessary, senior management and/or external advisors are invited to attend Board and
Board Committee meetings to provide clarification on agenda items so as to enable the Board and/or
the Board Committees to arrive at a considered and informed decision.
The Board has access to all information pertaining to the Company’s business and affairs through the
senior management and the Company Secretary to enable it to discharge its duties effectively.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board of Directors' Meetings (continued)
The Board has adopted a schedule of matters specially reserved for its approval which include,
amongst others, reviewing and approving the following:
•
•

•
•
•
•

Strategic/business plans and annual budget;
New investments, divestments, mergers and acquisitions, corporate restructuring including the
establishment of subsidiaries, joint ventures or strategic alliances both locally and abroad where
the sum or cost is considered significant or material;
Financial statements;
Appointment of new Director, CEO and Company Secretary;
Material related party transactions; and
Any form of borrowing or fund-raising exercise.

The following Directors have been appointed and/or retired/resigned in 2021:
Rosnah Dato’ Kamarul Zaman
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay
Faisal Ismail
Suresh Kumar T.A.S Menon
Md Yusof Hussin

Appointed on 6 January 2021
Appointed on 16 June 2021
Appointed on 25 May 2021 and
resigned on 19 November 2021
Retired on 10 May 2021
Retired on 22 August 2021

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board met twelve (12) times to deliberate
and consider a variety of significant matters that required its guidance and approval. All Directors
have attended at least 75% of the total Board meetings held during the financial year.
Details of attendance of each Director during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are as
follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Choo Yee Kwan

12/12

100%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

12/12

100%

Elakumari Kantilal

12/12

100%

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab

12/12

100%

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman

12/12

100%

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay

9/9

100%

Faisal Ismail
(appointed on 25 May 2021
and resigned on 19 November 2021)

8/8

100%

Suresh Menon
(retired on 10 May 2021)

3/3

100%

Md Yusof Hussin
(retired on 22 August 2021)

6/6

100%

Name of Directors
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board of Directors' Meetings (continued)
Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO
The roles and responsibilities of both the Chairman and the CEO are clearly separated with the
positions being held by two different individuals to ensure that an appropriate balance of role and
authority is maintained.
Chairman
The Chairman assumes the formal role of a leader and chairs all Board meetings, leads discussions
among Directors and provides leadership to the Board in its oversight of Management.
The Chairman facilitates the flow of information between Management and the Board, and in
consultation with Management, sets the agenda for each Board meeting. Other key roles of a
Chairman are, among others, the following:
(i)

to ensure the smooth functioning of the Board, the governance structure and inculcating positive
and strong culture of integrity, transparency and professionalism in the Board;
(ii) to ensure appropriate procedures are in place to govern the Board's operation and conduct;
(iii) to ensure all relevant issues are on agenda for Board meeting;
(iv) ensure that decisions are taken on a sound and well-informed basis including ensuring that
strategic and critical issues are considered by the Board;
(v) to ensure the Board receives relevant information on timely basis;
(vi) to ensure avenues are provided for all directors to participate openly in discussions and ensure
that dissenting views can be freely expressed and discussed;
(vii) to ensure that the Board comes to a clear decision and resolutions are noted; and
(viii) to lead efforts to address developmental needs of the Board.
CEO
The CEO assumes the primary responsibility over the day-to-day management of the Company and
the implementation of the Company's strategy. The CEO leads the Management in carrying out the
corporate strategy and vision of the Company.
The key roles of CEO in leading the Management include, among others:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

to ensure that the Company's business and risk strategies, remuneration and other policies are
effectively implemented in accordance with the direction given by the Board;
to ensure that there is a management structure that promotes accountability and transparency
throughout the Company’s operations;
to ensure that the effectiveness and independence of control functions are preserved;
promoting, together with the Board, a sound corporate culture within the Company which
reinforces ethical, prudent and professional behaviour as well as business integrity;
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board of Directors' Meetings (continued)
Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO (continued)
CEO (continued)
The key roles of CEO in leading the Management include, among others: (continued)
(v)

to ensure that the Board is regularly updated with material information to allow the Board to
carry out its oversight responsibilities particularly on matters relating to:
•
•

•
•

the performance, financial condition and operating environment of the Company;
failures relating to internal control systems, corruption risk management systems and
management information systems, including breaches of risk limits and the Anti-Bribery
and Anti-Corruption Policy;
legal and regulatory obligations, including supervisory concerns and the actions taken to
address them; and
ensuring that actual or suspected breaches of regulatory requirements or internal policies
are addressed in a timely and appropriate manner.

Board Committees
The Board has established several Board Committees which operate within their respective clearly
defined terms of reference to assist the Board in executing its duties and responsibilities. Although
the Board may delegate certain duties to the Board Committees, it remains ultimately responsible for
the decisions of the Board Committees.
The Board Committees established are as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee ("BRNC");
Board Audit Committee ("BAC");
Board Risk Committee ("BRC");
Board Underwriting Committee ("BUC"); and
Board Investment Committee ("BIC").

The Board also has, at its Board meeting held on 27 April 2020, approved the establishment of the
Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme Board Underwriting Committee (“DPGS BUC”), an ad-hoc
committee for the purpose of reviewing and approving proposals for admission into the DPGS and
consequential matters in connection with the DPGS in line with the Company’s approved Delegated
Authority Limits for DPGS following Danajamin’s appointment to manage DPGS on behalf of the
Government of Malaysia.
Pursuant to Paragraph 12.3 of the CG Guidelines, each of the BRNC, BAC and BRC must comply
with the following:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

have at least three (3) directors;
have a majority of independent directors;
be chaired by an independent director; and
comprise directors who have the skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the
responsibilities of the Board Committee.
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Committees (continued)
The functions and terms of reference of the Board Committees are clearly defined as follows:
1.

BRNC
Composition
The BRNC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive
Directors. As at 31 December 2021, the BRNC consists of the following three (3) Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director:
Members
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali (Chairman)
Suresh Menon (ceased as a member on 10 May 2021)
Choo Yee Kwan
Elakumari Kantilal
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
Faisal Ismail (appointed as a member on 25 May 2021 and ceased as a member on 19
November 2021)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least once every financial quarter and on such other occasions as the
BRNC Chairman deems necessary. In the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the BRNC
met seven (7) times.
The details of attendance of each BRNC member at the BRNC meeting during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali (Chairman)

7/7

100%

Suresh Menon
(ceased as a member on 10 May 2021)

3/3

100%

Choo Yee Kwan

7/7

100%

Elakumari Kantilal

7/7

100%

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab

6/7

86%

Faisal Ismail
(appointed as a member on 25 May 2021
and ceased as a member on 19 November 2021)

3/3

100%

Name of Directors
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DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Board Committees (continued)
1.

BRNC (continued)
Objectives
The function of the BRNC is to support the Board to do the following:
a.

To actively oversee the design and operation of the Company’s remuneration system in
line with the requirements set out in the CG Guidelines for directors, CEO and Key Senior
Management Officers and ensuring that the Company’s compensation package is
competitive to enable the Company to attract and retain high calibre executives needed
to run and manage the Company successfully.

b.

To provide a formal and transparent procedure for the following in line with the
requirements of the CG Guidelines:
(i)

appointment, removal, role and performance evaluation and development as well
as fit and proper assessments on members of the Board, members of the Board
committees, the CEO, Key Senior Management Officers and the company
secretary; and

(ii)

the composition of the Board taking into account the need for the Board to have
the appropriate balance and size, and the required mix of skills, experience and
other core competencies.

Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one
time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the BRNC.
Voting
Decision is by majority, with casting vote to BRNC Chairman.
Authority
The BRNC shall have the authority to:
a.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal
auditors, external auditors and employees of the Company in order to perform its duties
and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any
matter within its terms of reference.
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1.

BRNC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities
a.

To periodically review and recommend to the Board the remuneration of directors on the
Board, particularly whether remuneration remains appropriate to each director’s
contribution, taking into account the level of expertise, commitment and responsibilities
undertaken.

b.

To review and recommend to the Board the compensation, benefits and salary scale and
terms and conditions for all levels of employees of the Company.

c.

To review and recommend to the Board the overall budget for the annual bonus and
salary increment for all levels of employees of the Company.

d.

To consider and recommend to the Board concerning:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

e.

suitable candidates for appointment as CEO;
the compensation and benefits package and the terms and conditions of service of
the CEO; and
suitable candidate for the appointment as the company secretary.

To review and approve the following:
(i)

(ii)

the remuneration package of all Heads of Functions and Heads of Division (other
than the Head of Functions and the Heads of Division within the audit function and
risk management function); and
the promotions and appointments of all Head of Functions and Heads of Division
(other than the Head of Functions and the Heads of Division within the audit
function and risk management function).

f.

To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy
ensuring that the input from the control functions and the Board Risk Committee have
been considered adequately.

g.

To consider and recommend to the Board concerning:
(i)
(ii)

h.

suitable candidates for appointment as Directors; and
the re-appointment of any Non-Executive Directors at the conclusion of their
specified term of office with due regard to their performance and ability to
contribute to the Board in light of knowledge, skills and experience required.

To establish a mechanism to assess on an annual basis the following and to review the
results of such annual assessment:
(i)

The effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the contribution of each Committee of
the Board and the performance of each individual director;
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1.

BRNC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities (continued)
h.

To establish a mechanism to assess on an annual basis the following and to review the
results of such annual assessment: (continued)
(ii)
(iii)

2.

The performance of the CEO, the Key Senior Management Officers and the
company secretary; and
The required mix of skills and experience and other qualities, including diversity
and core competencies, which Non-Executive Directors should bring to the Board.

i.

To consider and recommend to the Board measures to upgrade the effectiveness of the
Board and Committees of the Board.

j.

To assist the Board in the regular review of succession plans for the Board and the Board
Committees.

k.

To ensure directors, the CEO, the Key Senior Management Officers, the external actuary
and the company secretary are assessed against the minimum fit and proper
requirements under the CG Guidelines and the Fit and Proper Criteria Guidelines issued
by BNM at the time of appointment, on an annual basis or as and when circumstance
changed that may affect the ability to meet such minimum requirements.

l.

To consider any conflict of issues disclosed by proposed directors and if relevant or
applicable, recommend solutions (if any) on such disclosed issues of conflict of interest.

m.

To review and recommend to the Board the appointment of the external actuary.

n.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time.

BAC
Composition
The BAC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive
Directors with the majority of them being Independent Directors. As at 31 December 2021, the
BAC consists of the following three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors:
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2.

BAC (continued)
Members
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Elakumari Kantilal (Chairman)
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay (appointed as a member on 15 December
2021)
Faisal Ismail (appointed as a member on 25 May 2021 and ceased to be a member on
19 November 2021)
Suresh Menon (ceased as a member on 10 May 2021)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least once every financial quarter and such other occasions as the BAC
Chairman deems necessary or if requested by the internal auditors or external auditors. In the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, the BAC met a total of six (6) times as scheduled. The
BAC met the external auditors twice in 2021 without the presence of Management.
The details of attendance of each BAC member at the BAC meeting during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Name of Directors

Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Elakumari Kantilal

6/6

100%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

6/6

100%

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay
(appointed as a member on 15 December 2021)

N/A

N/A

Faisal Ismail
(appointed as a member on 25 May 2021 and
ceased as a member in 19 November 2021)

3/3

100%

Suresh Menon
(ceased as a member on 10 May 2021)

3/3

100%

Objective
The function of the BAC is to support the Board in ensuring that there is oversight in internal
controls and a reliable and transparent financial reporting process within the Company.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of members at any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her representative within the Secretarial Unit shall act as the
Secretary to the BAC.
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BAC (continued)
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to BAC Chairman.
Authority
The BAC shall have authority to:
a.

Investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

b.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal
auditors, external auditors and employees of the Company in order to perform its duties
and discharge its responsibilities; and

c.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any
matter within its terms of reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review the Company’s financial statements (including interim financial reports) for
submission to the Board and ensure compliance with disclosure requirements and any
adjustments as suggested by the external auditors including but not limited to the
following :
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

changes in accounting policies and practices;
compliance with laws, regulations and financial reporting standards;
material variances or fluctuations; and
validity of going concern assumptions.

b.

To review the reports of the Bank Negara Malaysia Examiners and any other relevant
parties, including obligatory reports to the BNM on matters covered under the Financial
Services Act 2013 and ensure that supervisory issues raised by BNM are resolved in a
timely manner.

c.

In relation to the Company’s internal audit function:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

To ensure the independence of the internal audit function.
To assess the performance and effectiveness of the internal audit function
(including the effectiveness of the internal technology audit function) and its
compliance with all applicable policy documents issued by BNM including but not
limited to BNM's Guidelines on Internal Audit function for Licensed Institutions.
To review and approve the internal audit charter, the annual audit plan, scope
(which includes conducting audit on any areas as may be deemed necessary by
the Head of Division of Internal Audit and/or the Chairman of the BAC),
procedures, frequency and budget for the internal audit function.
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BAC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities (continued)
c.

In relation to the Company’s internal audit function: (continued)
(iv)

To receive and review reports from the internal auditors and to review and monitor
Management’s responsiveness to the internal auditor’s findings and
recommendations in particular:
(a) to ensure that the Management is taking necessary corrective actions in a
timely manner to address control weaknesses, technology control gaps, noncompliance with laws, regulatory requirements, policies and other areas
identified by the internal audit function; and
(b) to note any significant disagreement between the Head of Division of Internal
Audit and the rest of the member of the Management, irrespective of whether
these have been resolved, in order to identify any impact such disagreement
may have on the audit process or findings.

(v)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)
d.

To review and approve the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of the Head
of Division of Internal Audit.
To review and approve the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and undertake
annual performance assessment for the Head of Division of Internal Audit.
To ensure the Head of Division of Internal Audit is assessed against the minimum
fit and proper requirements under the CG Guidelines and the Fit and Proper
Criteria Guidelines issued by BNM at the time of appointment, on an annual basis
or as and when circumstance changed that may affect the ability to meet such
minimum requirements.
To ensure the adequacy and competency of resources for the carrying out of the
internal audit function including technology audits.

To foster a quality audit of the Company by exercising oversight over the external
auditors in accordance with the expectations set out in the policy document on “External
Auditor” issued by BNM, in particular:
(i)

(ii)

To consider the appointment, reappointment, removal or resignation of the
external auditors and their remuneration and to make appropriate
recommendations to the Board.
To monitor and assess the objectivity, performance and independence of the
external auditors including approving the engagement of external auditors to
provide non-audit services and assessing whether the provision of such non-audit
services by the external auditors would impair their independence.
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BAC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities (continued)
d.

To foster a quality audit of the Company by exercising oversight over the external
auditors in accordance with the expectations set out in the policy document on “External
Auditor” issued by BNM, in particular: (continued)
(iii)

To monitor and assess the effectiveness of the external audit process in particular:
(a) to review the nature and scope of the audit plan;
(b) to review reports or findings of the external auditors including any major
issues that arose during the course of their audit that have subsequently been
resolved and any unresolved audit issues; and
(c) to meet with external auditors without the presence of the Management at
least annually to discuss key concerns and feedback.

(iv)

(v)

e.

To provide oversight of internal controls of the Company and in connection thereto:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
f.

To review Management’s response to the external auditors’ findings and
recommendations in particular to ensure that the Management is taking necessary
corrective actions in a timely manner to address such findings and
recommendations.
To engage on a regular and timely basis and to have open and honest
communication with the external auditors to ensure that the external auditors
report to the BAC on significant matters.

when approving any audit plan, scope and frequency, to consider the following:
(a) bribery and corruption risks;
(b) the independent credit review function that forms part of the Company’s credit
risk management process;
(c) technology and cybersecurity risks.
to make independent observations pertaining to risk management including the
following:
(a) the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls in countering bribery and
corruption risks;
(b) the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls in managing credit risk
and in doing so, to receive and review reports arising from the independent
credit review carried out;
to review third party opinions on the design and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control framework.

To review the following:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

the adequacy and accuracy of the Chairman’s statement in the Directors’ Report;
the adequacy and accuracy of corporate governance disclosures, preliminary
announcements in relation to the preparation of financial statements and interim
financial reports; and
any related party transactions and to update the Board on the same.
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BAC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities (continued)
g.

To monitor compliance with the Board’s conflicts of interest policy (as formalised in the
Board Charter).

h.

To meet with the BRC with a view of promoting alignment on the oversight function of the
BAC and the BRC in terms of effective coverage of all risks in particular:
(i)
(ii)

i.

to ensure effective exchange of information between the BAC and the BRC; and
to ensure that any material issues arising from the review of the effectiveness of
the internal audit function relating to matters which are within the remit of the BRC
are communicated to such Committee for its consideration.

To do the following:
(i)

(ii)

to ensure effective implementation of the Company’s Whistleblower Policy &
Procedure as well as to oversee the periodic reviews on the effectiveness of the
same; and
to monitor and investigate allegations reported and to determine the appropriate
follow up action(s) to be taken.

The Chairman of BAC or any one of its members shall be one of the persons designated
as the “Primary Recipient” in line with the Company’s Whistleblower Policy & Procedure.
j.

3.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time.

BRC
Composition
The BRC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be non-executive
directors, of which one (1) member shall also be a member of the Board Underwriting
Committee. As at 31 December 2021, the BRC consists of the following three (3) Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director:
Members
(i)
Choo Yee Kwan (Chairman)
(ii)
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
(iii)
Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman (appointed as a member on 26 February 2021)
(iv)
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay (appointed as a member on 30 June 2021)
(v)
Elakumari Kantilal (ceased as a member on 26 February 2021)
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BRC (continued)
Meetings
Meetings are held at least six (6) times (at least once every two (2) months) in a financial year
and on such other occasions as the BRC Chairman deems necessary or if requested by the
Chief Risk Officer or the Chief Compliance Officer. In the financial year ended 31 December
2021, the BRC met eight (8) times as scheduled.
The details of attendance of each BRC member at the BRC meeting during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Choo Yee Kwan

8/8

100%

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab

7/8

88%

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman
(appointed as a member on 26 February 2021)

5/5

100%

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay
(appointed as a member on 30 June 2021)

3/3

100%

Elakumari Kantilal
(ceased as a member on 26 February 2021)

3/3

100%

Name of Directors

Objective
The function of the BRC is to support the Board in ensuring that the risk management functions
and practices of the Company are conducted and discharged effectively to ensure management
and mitigation of key risks and in line with the expectations on risk management as set out in
the policy document on Risk Governance issued by BNM.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one
time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the BRC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the BRC Chairman.
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BRC (continued)
Authority
The BRC shall have the authority to:
a.

Investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

b.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal
auditors, external auditors and employees of the Company in order to perform its duties
and discharge its responsibilities; and

c.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any
matter within its terms of reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review and recommend to the Board the risk-taking strategies (including IT &
cybersecurity strategies) and risk management policies of the Company.

b.

To review the overall risk profile of the Company as per the Key Risk Register.

c.

To consider and set the risk appetite and technology risk appetite, appropriate for the
Company.

d.

In relation to the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Compliance Officer, the Chief Information
Security Officer and the risk management function:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)
e.

To ensure the independence of the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Compliance
Officer, the Chief Information Security Officer and the risk management function.
To review and approve the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of the Chief
Risk Officer, the Chief Compliance Officer and the Chief Information Security
Officer.
To review and approve the appointment, remuneration and dismissal of the Heads
of Division within the risk management function.
To review and approve the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and undertake the
annual performance assessment for each of the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief
Compliance Officer, the Chief Information Security Officer and the Heads of
Division within the risk management function.
To ensure each of the Chief Risk Officer, the Chief Compliance Officer, the Chief
Information Security Officer and the Heads of Division within the risk management
function is assessed against the minimum fit and proper requirements under the
CG Guidelines and the Fit and Proper Criteria Guidelines issued by BNM at the
time of appointment, on an annual basis or as and when circumstance changed
that may affect the ability to meet such minimum requirements.
To ensure adequacy of resources for the carrying out of the risk management
function.

To review the performance of the risk management function and the compliance
management framework of the Company taking into account all applicable BNM's policy
documents including but not limited to Risk Governance, Operational Risk, Credit Risk,
Risk Management in Technology and Compliance.
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BRC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities (continued)
f.

To approve contingency plans for dealing with potential high-impact risk events.

g.

To promote a risk-awareness culture in the Company taking into account the Risk
Governance policy document issued by BNM.

h.

To give input on the implementation of a sound remuneration system and to examine
whether incentives provided by the remuneration system take into consideration risks,
capital, liquidity and the likelihood and timing of earnings, without prejudice to the tasks of
the BRNC.

i.

To approve and review the overall design and implementation of anti-bribery & anticorruption framework in the Company and in connection thereto:
(i)

to review and assess the appropriateness, adequacy and comprehensiveness of
the anti-bribery & anti-corruption framework and the corruption risks management
systems of the Company in line with the need to effectively mitigate bribery and
corruption risks having regard to the size, nature and complexity of Danajamin’s
operations;

(ii)

to advise the Board on issues and breaches relating to bribery and corruption
risks;
to receive periodical updates on the implementation of anti-bribery & anticorruption framework, review reports on incidences of breach and any
investigation carried out and to be apprised if actions are or not to be taken on the
recommendation made in such reports.

(iii)

j.

To review the performance of the independent credit review function taking into account
the requirements for the same in the BNM’s policy document on Credit Risk and in
connection thereto:
(i)
(ii)

k.

to receive and review reports arising from the independent credit review carried
out; and
to be apprised if actions are or not to be taken on the recommendation made in
such reports.

To approve and review the implementation of the Company’s technology risk
management framework and cyber resilience framework in line with the Company’s
approved technology risk appetite and to ensure these remain appropriate, adequate and
comprehensive in light of material changes to the size, nature and complexity of the
Company’s operations;
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BRC (continued)
Duties and responsibilities (continued)
l.

To meet with the BAC with a view of promoting alignment on the oversight function of the
BRC and the BAC in terms of effective coverage of all risks in particular:
(i)
(ii)

m.

to ensure effective exchange of information between the BRC and the BAC; and
to ensure that any material issues arising from the review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal controls relating to matters which are within the
remit of the BAC are communicated to such Committee for its consideration.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time.

Joint BAC and BRC
The BAC and the BRC jointly meet to ensure effective exchange of information between the
BAC and BRC members so as to enable effective coverage of all risks, including emerging risk
issues that could have an impact on the Company’s risk appetite and business plans. In the
financial year ended 31 December 2021, the BAC and the BRC jointly met two (2) times and
among the matters reviewed and discussed were business emerging risks and the overall Risk
Management and Internal Audit Plans of the Company in order to promote alignment on the
oversight function of the BAC and the BRC.

4.

BUC
Composition
The BUC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive
Directors and the majority of the members shall be Independent Directors. As at 31 December
2021, the BUC consists of the following three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors and one
(1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director:
Members
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman (Chairman) (appointed as a member on 26 February 2021
and assumed as a Chairman on 25 March 2021)
Choo Yee Kwan (ceased as a chairman on 25 March 2021 and a member on 31
December 2021)
Suresh Menon (ceased as a member on 10 May 2021)
Md Yusof Hussin (ceased as a member on 22 August 2021)
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
Faisal Ismail (appointed as a member on 25 May 2021 and ceased as a member on 19
November 2021)
Elakumari Kantilal (appointed as a member on 15 December 2021)
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BUC (continued)
Meetings
Meetings are held at least once a month and on such other occasions as the BUC Chairman
deems necessary or if requested by the Management. In the financial year ended 31 December
2021, the BUC met sixteen (16) times; twelve (12) scheduled meetings and four (4) special
meetings.
The details of attendance of each BUC member at the BUC meeting during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman (Chairman)
(appointed as a member on 26 February 2021 and
assumed as a Chairman on 25 March 2021)

14/14

100%

Choo Yee Kwan
(ceased as a Chairman on 25 March 2021 and as
a member on 31 December 2021)

16/16

100%

Suresh Menon
(ceased as a member on 10 May 2021)

5/5

100%

Md Yusof Hussin
(ceased as a member on 22 August 2021)

9/9

100%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali

16/16

100%

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab

15/16

94%

Faisal Ismail
(appointed as a member on 25 May 2021 and
ceased as a member on 19 November 2021)

7/7

100%

Elakumari Kantilal
(appointed as a member on 15 December 2021)

1/1

100%

Name of Directors

Objective
To review and endorse (with power to veto) underwriting proposals approved by the
Management Underwriting Committee.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one
time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the BUC.
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Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the BUC Chairman.
Authority
The BUC shall have authority to:
a.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal
auditors, external auditors and employees of the Company in order to perform its duties
and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any
matter within its terms of reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review and, if appropriate, endorse matters approved by the Management
Underwriting Committee in accordance with the Company's approved Delegated
Authority Limit (DAL) Manual, which include, amongst others, the following :
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

5.

underwriting proposals;
variation requests relating to proposals underwritten;
amendments to the Guidelines on Refinancing; and
advance facility request and advance payment request.

b.

Where an underwriting proposal has been approved by the Management Underwriting
Committee and the BUC disagrees with the proposal, to exercise the power of veto.

c.

To review and monitor reports on the underwriting performance of the Company.

d.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time.

BIC
Composition
The BIC shall comprise at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive
Directors and the majority of the members shall be Independent Directors. As at 31 December
2021, the BIC consists of the following three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Members
(i)
(ii)

Elakumari Kantilal (ceased as a Chairman but remained as a member on 29 March
2021)
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali (appointed as a Chairman 29 March 2021 and ceased as a
Chairman on 30 June 2021 and subsequently appointed as a member on 15 December
2021)
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BIC (continued)
Members (continued)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay (Chairman) (appointed as a Chairman on 30
June 2021)
Choo Yee Kwan (ceased as a member on 26 February 2021)
Suresh Menon (ceased as member on 10 May 2021)
Faisal Ismail (appointed as a member 30 June 2021 and ceased as a member on 19
November 2021)

Meetings
Meetings are held at least four (4) times each financial year, on a quarterly basis, and on such
other occasions as the BIC Chairman deems necessary. In the financial year ended 31
December 2021, the BIC met four (4) times as scheduled.
The details of attendance of each BIC member at the BIC meeting during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Elakumari Kantilal
(ceased as a Chairman on 29 March 2021)

4/4

100%

Choo Yee Kwan
(ceased as a member on 26 February 2021)

1/1

100%

Suresh Menon
(ceased as member on 10 May 2021)

2/2

100%

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
(appointed as a Chairman on 29 March 2021
and ceased as a Chairman on 30 June 2021
and subsequently appointed as a member
on 15 December 2021)

1/1

100%

Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal Singh Randhay (Chairman)
(appointed as a Chairman on 30 June 2021)

2/2

100%

Faisal Ismail
(appointed as a member on 30 June 2021 and
ceased as a member on 19 November 2021)

2/2

100%

Name of Directors

Objective
To ensure the Company invests and manages its capital resources in a professional and
prudent manner, achieves the targeted returns while assuming an appropriate level of risk,
maintain a sufficient level of liquidity for claim events and maintain conformity with all regulatory
requirements.
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Board Committees (continued)
5.

BIC (continued)
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be a majority of the members at any one
time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her representative within the Secretarial Unit shall act as the
Secretary to the BIC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the BIC Chairman.
Authority
The BIC shall have the authority to:
a.

Have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information, documents, internal
auditors, external auditors and employees of the Company in order to perform its duties
and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

Obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any
matter within its terms of reference.

Duties and responsibilities

6.

a.

To review and, if appropriate, approve from time to time the investments strategy of the
Company.

b.

To review, and if appropriate, recommend changes to the Company’s Investment Policy
to be in line with the Company’s investment strategy.

c.

To review the performance of the portfolio of capital resources.

d.

To determine from time to time the asset allocation target for the portfolio of capital
resources.

e.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time.

DPGS BUC
Composition
The DPGS BUC shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be NonExecutive Directors.
In the absence of the Chairman, the remaining members present shall elect one of themselves
to chair the meeting.
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6.

DPGS BUC (continued)
Members
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman (Chairman) (appointed as a member on 26 February 2021
and assumed as a Chairman on 29 March 2021)
Choo Yee Kwan (ceased as a Chairman but remained as a member on 29 March 2021)
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali (ceased as a member on 30 June 2021)
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab

Meetings
The DPGS BUC shall meet fortnightly or at such other times as the Chairman deems
necessary. In the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the DPGS BUC met twelve (12)
times; nine (9) scheduled meetings and three (3) special meetings.
The details of attendance of each member at the DPGS BUC meeting during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
Number of
Meetings and
Attendance

Percentage of
Attendance

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman (Chairman)
(appointed as a member on 26 February 2021
and assumed as a Chairman on 29 March 2021)

11/11

100%

Choo Yee Kwan
(ceased as a Chairman but remained
as a member on 29 March 2021)

12/12

100%

6/6

100%

12/12

100%

Name of Directors

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
(ceased as a member on 30 June 2021)
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
Objective

To review and approve proposals for admission into the DPGS and consequential matters in
connection with the DPGS in line with the Company’s approved Delegated Authority Limits for
DPGS.
Quorum
Quorum necessary for transaction of business shall be two (2) members of the DPGS BUC at
any one time.
Secretary
Company secretary or his/her nominee shall act as the Secretary to the DPGS BUC.
Voting
Decision is by majority of members, with casting vote to the Chairman.
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6.

DPGS BUC (continued)
Authority
The DPGS BUC shall have the authority to:
a.

have full, free and unrestricted access to any records, information and documents
relating to DPGS, internal auditors, external auditors and employees of the Company, in
order to perform its duties and discharge its responsibilities; and

b.

obtain independent professional advice and expertise at the Company’s expense on any
matter within its terms of reference.

Duties and responsibilities
a.

To review and, if appropriate, approve matters in accordance with the Company’s
approved Delegated Authority Limit for DPGS, which include, amongst others, the
following:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

underwriting proposals;
variation requests relating to proposals underwritten; and
any other matters relating to DPGS as tabled by Management requiring direction
or endorsement of the DPGS BUC.

b.

To oversee monitoring reports at regular intervals on the underwriting performance and
status of all DPGS accounts.

c.

To carry out such other responsibilities as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time in respect of the DPGS.
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Training and education provided to the Board
During the financial year, the Directors have attended the following training programmes:
Director
Md Yusof Hussin
(Retired as a Chairman
on 22 August 2021)

Training attended
Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Description of training
Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.

Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.

2.

AMLA 2001: Risk,
Challenges, Governance &
Transparency in Managing
Business & Compliance
(23 March 2021)

To Identify the importance of key
sections under AMLATFPUAA 2001 and
its
reporting
obligations
towards
improving governance and transparency
in Reporting Institutions and recognize
the need to balance business &
compliance by implementing Risk Based
Approach on its policies & procedure to
manage, identify, assess, profile,
mitigate and monitor the risk of money
laundering and terrorism financing.

3.

Personal Data Protection
Act, 2010 (PDPA)
(26 March 2021)

Introduction to Personal Data Protection
Act 2010 (PDPA), principles and
standards, recent developments in
PDPA, level of PDPA compliance in
Danajamin, Q&A session.

1.

Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.

2.

Personal Data Protection
Act, 2010 (PDPA)
(26 March 2021)

Introduction to Personal Data Protection
Act 2010 (PDPA), principles and
standards, recent developments in
PDPA, level of PDPA compliance in
Danajamin, Q&A session.

1.

1.
Suresh Menon
(Retired on 10 May 2021)

Choo Yee Kwan
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Choo Yee Kwan
(continued)

3.

4.

Datuk Che Mokhtar Che
Ali

Training attended
Description of training
FIDE FORUM Dialogue on Focus on the progress of the RMiT
"RMiT Implementation"
Policy implementation in the financial
(8 July 2021)
services industry, Challenges faced by
the industry and key focus areas moving
forward.
Asian Institute of Chartered Focus on how risk functions must be
Bankers Session on
quick to identify, and manage for an
"Future of Risk Function"
acceleration in the emergence of new
(15 September 2021)
risk types e.g. climate risk, culture risk
and model risk associated with and
automation and deployment of more
complex and opaque analytics.

5.

Asia School of Business
Session on "Raising
Defences: S17A, MACC
Act"
(17 September 2021)

To provide an understanding of the
corporate liability provision of the MACC
Act, and its implications for board and
senior management. It will also delve
into the definition of corruption and what
would constitute adequate procedures to
protect board and senior management.

6.

Malaysian Institute of
Management Session on
"Digital Skills for a Digital
World"
(5 October 2021)

To obtain insights and resources on how
to attract and nurture talents in today’s
digital age.

7.

Malaysian Institute of
Management Session on
"Combating the Threats of
Cybercrimes in Malaysia"
(21 October 2021)

To provide an overview on Cybersecurity
Evolution: the Malaysian Story, SMEs;
Preparing for a Cyber-Secure Future
and
Cybersecurity
Threats
and
Vulnerabilities Relevant to Fintech.

8.

Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

1.

Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che
Ali (continued)

2.

3.

Training attended
Personal Data Protection
Act, 2010 (PDPA)
(26 March 2021)

Description of training
Introduction to Personal Data Protection
Act 2010 (PDPA), principles and
standards, recent developments in
PDPA, level of PDPA compliance in
Danajamin, Q&A session.

Shaping the future of FI
board leadership –
Invitation to FIDE Forum’s
Engagement Session on
Board Leadership
Framework (Session B)
(23 August 2021)

Board insights in the following areas
relating to the roles and responsibilities
of Independent Non-Executive Directors
(INEDs) of FIs:
▪ What are the key challenges that
financial services industry face, now
and in the near future?
▪

▪
▪

▪
4.

Elakumari Kantilal

Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

What kind of cultural environment
would drive the financial services
industry over the next 5 years?
What
critical
leadership
competencies should an INED have?
What traits do FIs look for when
identifying INEDs to join their
Boards?
What are the expectations from
regulators’ perspectives?

Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

1. FIDE Programme – Module The FIDE Core Programme is designed
B (Insurance)
with specific focus on financial sector
(1 & 3 March 2021)
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.
2.

Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.

3.

Personal Data Protection
Act, 2010 (PDPA)
(26 March 2021)

Introduction to Personal Data Protection
Act 2010 (PDPA), principles and
standards, recent developments in
PDPA, level of PDPA compliance in
Danajamin, Q&A session.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Elakumari Kantilal
(continued)

Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab

Training attended
The Khazanah Megatrends
Forum 2021 - The
Invention of Tomorrow Crafting Our New
Collective Narrative
(4-6 October 2021)

Description of training
The discussion was focusing on four
core session; how various market
globally are affected, what the theme
means to firms and society at large and
what are the imperatives of leadership
and people.

5.

Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

6.

Annual Dialogue with
Governor of Bank Negara
Malaysia
(3 December 2021)

Discussion on the topics of the economy
(2022 outlook), financial sector Blueprint
and trends/developments, as well as the
implications to the FI Boards.

4.

1. FIDE Programme – Module
A (Insurance)
(11 – 12 January 2021,
18 – 20, 22 January 2021
and 25 – 26 January 2021)

The FIDE Core Programme is designed
with specific focus on financial sector
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.

2. FIDE Programme – Module
B (Insurance)
(1 -3 March 2021, 4 -5
March 2021 and 8 – 9
March 2021)

The FIDE Core Programme is designed
with specific focus on financial sector
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.

3. Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.

4.

Personal Data Protection
Act, 2010 (PDPA)
(26 March 2021)

Introduction to Personal Data Protection
Act 2010 (PDPA), principles and
standards, recent developments in
PDPA, level of PDPA compliance in
Danajamin, Q&A session.

5.

FIDE Programme – Module
B (Insurance)
(4-6 August 2021, 9,11 and
12 August 2021.

The FIDE Core Programme is designed
with specific focus on financial sector
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
(continued)

Rosnah Dato' Kamarul
Zaman (Appointed on 6
January 2021)

6.

1.

Training attended
Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

Description of training
Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

Board Orientation
Programme

Broad understanding of Danajamin’s
business and operations.

(i)

25 January 2021
(Overview and
Business)
(ii) 2 February 2021
(Finance and Risk
Management); and
(iii) 4 February 2021
(Legal, Human Capital,
Internal Audit and
Corporate Strategy &
Communications)
2.

Security Awareness
Programme
(19 March 2021)

Focus on delivering internet safety
messages and practices for IT and NonIT users for any organisation, in order to
remain resilient to today’s cyber threats
and attacks.

3.

Personal Data Protection
Act, 2010 (PDPA)
(26 March 2021)

Introduction to Personal Data Protection
Act 2010 (PDPA), principles and
standards, recent developments in
PDPA, level of PDPA compliance in
Danajamin, Q&A session.

4. BNM-FIDE FORUM-MASB Forum discussion focusing on the
Dialogue on MFRS17
following:
Insurance Contracts: What ▪ Key attributes of the Standard and
Every Director Must Know
why they are important to insurers
(20 April 2021)
and takaful operators
▪ Insights on the impact of the
Standard on strategy, governance
and operations of insurers and
takaful operators
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
4.
Rosnah Dato' Kamarul
Zaman (Appointed on 6
January 2021) (continued)

Training attended
Description of training
BNM-FIDE FORUM-MASB Forum discussion focusing on the
Dialogue on MFRS17
following: (continued)
Insurance Contracts: What ▪ Potential issues/problems that may
Every Director Must Know
arise during the planning and
(20 April 2021) (continued)
implementation
stages
of
the
Standard
▪ Key Milestones and progress that the
Board should take note of for
seamless transition from existing
practice
to
the
Standard’s
implementation in 2023
▪ Key discussions that must take place
now between the Board and
Management on this matter. What
are the key questions that Boards
should be asking their respective
Management teams?

5. BNM-FIDE FORUM
Dialogue: The Future of
Malaysia's Financial Sector
(9 June 2021)

Session on the engagement with senior
officials of BNM to discuss substantive
matters
that
concern
financial
institutions’ Boards with respect to the
current and future developments in the
economy and financial services industry.
Increasingly,
FIDE
FORUM
is
recognised as the platform for
Regulators to engage with FI Boards.

6. FIDE Programme – Module The FIDE Core Programme is designed
B (insurance)
with specific focus on financial sector
(12, 13 and 23 July 2021
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.
7.

The Cooler Earth 2021 (23 - Call-to-action
on
sustainable
27 September 2021)
development and discussion as to how
our actions today will directly impact the
well-being of the current and future
generations.

8.

The Khazanah Megatrends
Forum 2021 - The
Invention of Tomorrow Crafting Our New
Collective Narrative
(4-6 October 2021)

38

The discussion was focusing on four
core session; how various market
globally are affected, what the theme
means to firms and society at large and
what are the imperatives of leadership
and people.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
9.
Rosnah Dato' Kamarul
Zaman (Appointed on 6
January 2021) (continued)

Training attended
Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

Description of training
Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

1.
Faisal Ismail
(Appointed on 25 May
2021 and resigned on 19
November 2021)

BNM – FIDE Forum
Dialogue: The Role of
Independent Directors
(2 June 2021)

Discussion on substantive matters that
concern financial institutions’ Boards
with respect to the current and future
developments in the economy and
financial services industry. Increasingly,
FIDE FORUM is recognised as the
platform for Regulators to engage with
FI Boards.

2.

BNM - FIDE FORUM
Dialogue: The Future of
Malaysia's Financial Sector
(9 June 2021)

Discussion on substantive matters that
concern financial institutions’ Boards
with respect to the current and future
developments in the economy and
financial services industry. Increasingly,
FIDE FORUM is recognised as the
platform for Regulators to engage with
FI Boards.

3.

Board Orientation
(i) 14 June 2021
(Business and Risk
Management); and
(ii) 15 June 2021 –
(Finance, Legal,
Internal Audit and
Corporate Strategy &
Communications)
ICIF Asia School of
Business - Risk
Management Committee Banking Sector
(1 & 2 July 2021)

Broad understanding of Danajamin’s
business and operations.

4.

39

To provide a broad overview of the
different bank risks in addition to Bank
Negara
Malaysia’s
regulatory
requirements
and
supervisory
expectations with respect to the
oversight of such risks. In addition to
explore the regulatory financial and
disclosure
requirements
whilst
comparing and contrasting issues
related to risk management in the
banking industry. The program will
highlight and emphasize the critical role
of risk management oversight that is
expected of bank directors.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
5.
Faisal Ismail
(Appointed on 25 May
2021 and resigned on 19
November 2021)
(continued)
6.

Training attended
BNM - FIDE FORUM
Dialogue: - On RMiT
Implementation
(8 July 2021)
Eventbrite/Pemandu
Associates - The CIMB
Transformation Story by
Nazir Razak
(10 July 2021)

Description of training
Focus on the progress of the RMiT
Policy implementation in the financial
services industry, Challenges faced by
the industry and key focus areas moving
forward.
Discussion on the the importance of
leadership
in
transformation.

driving

successful

7.

CFA Society Malaysia/
ACCA Webinar - 2021 MidYear Outlook: Tackling
Tricky Transitions
(27 July 2021)

Sharing session from the market
industry experts on their views on the
outlook for Malaysia's economy in the
second half of 2021.

8.

Eventbrite/Pemandu
Associates - The Air Asia
Story by Tan Sri Tony
Fernandez
(14 August 2021)

Sharing session by Tan Sri Dr Tony
Fernandes on 10 practical lessons told
through the lens of building Air Asia from
the ground up.

9.

Shaping the future of FI
board leadership - Invitation
to FIDE FORUM's
Engagement Session on
Board Leadership
Framework (Session A)
(18 August 2021)

Board insights in the following areas
relating to the roles and responsibilities
of Independent Non-Executive Directors
(INEDs) of FIs:
▪

▪

▪
▪

▪

40

What are the key challenges that
financial services industry face, now
and in the near future?
What kind of cultural environment
would drive the financial services
industry over the next 5 years?
What
critical
leadership
competencies should an INED have?
What traits do FIs look for when
identifying INEDs to join their
Boards?
What are the expectations from
regulators’ perspectives?
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Training attended
10. FIDE FORUM Dialogue Faisal Ismail
(Appointed on 25 May
Webinar: - The Board's
2021 and resigned on 19
role & responsibilities in
November 2021)
Crisis Communication
(continued)
(19 August 2021)

Description of training
Discussion on the following areas:
▪
▪
▪

▪

The
Board’s
role
in
crisis
communications;
Communications - before, during and
after a crisis;
Key indicators to measure the
company’s performance in crisis
communications; and
Key questions that the board should
be asking management.

11. ISRA - Islamic Finance for
Board of Directors
(8 & 9 September 2021)

The programme aims to activate Islamic
banking innovations as a board room
priority
of
financial
institutions,
emphasising on a clear understanding of
differences in the value orientation and
operationalisation of Islamic banking
business vis-à-vis conventional banking.

12. Pemandu Associates Transforming National
Treasures - The Khazanah
Nasional Story by Tan Sri
Azman Mokhtar
(18 September 2021)

Sharing session from Tan Sri Azman
Mokhtar on his strategies and lessons in
transforming Khazanah Nasional to a
premier strategic investment funds,
trebling
the
assets
under
the
management to USD40 billion from
2006 to 2008.

13. The Khazanah Megatrends
Forum 2021 - The
Invention of Tomorrow Crafting Our New
Collective Narrative
(4-6 October 2021)
14. Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

The discussion was focusing on four
core session; how various market
globally are affected, what the theme
means to firms and society at large and
what are the imperatives of leadership
and people.
Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

15. Bursa-FIDE Forum
Dialogue on Sustainability
(2 November 2021)

Discussion
about
transitioning to
sustainable finance and investment
which requires a comprehensive and
holistic
approach
to
strategy
development and organisation wide
implementation that demands the
attention of Boards.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Training attended
16. BNPP - Islamic Banking
Faisal Ismail
(Appointed on 25 May
Training Course for Board
2021 and resigned on 19
of Directors 2021
November 2021)
(3 November 2021)
(continued)

17. The 2050 Net Zero Carbon
Emissions Target:
Finance’s Role
(12 November 2021)

Description of training
The programme aims to activate Islamic
banking innovations as a board room
priority
of
financial
institutions,
emphasising on a clear understanding of
differences in the value orientation and
operationalisation of Islamic banking
business vis-à-vis conventional banking.
Discussion about achieving net-zero but
exactly what role does the FI play in this
new frontier for Malaysian businesses,
amongst others:
▪

How can FI Boards lead their
organisations to take first-mover
advantage in this period of transition?

▪

What
are
BNM’s
specific
expectations of FI Boards?
What are some of the concrete
actions that can be taken in the next
1-2 years?

▪

18. SC-FIDE Forum Dialogue
on Capital Market
Masterplan 3
(16 November 2021)

19. FIDE FORUM - Online Focus Group Discussion
for BNM - FIDE FORUM
Dialogue with BNM
Governor
(3 December 2021)

42

This dialogue aims to, among others,
discuss and tackle the challenges from
various perspectives as follows:
▪ Expanded roles of the capital market
in the Malaysian Economy
▪ Sustainability
and
responsible
investment
ecosystem
–
digitalization, climate action etc.
▪ Corporate Governance practices in
the Masterplan 3
Discussion on the topics of the economy
(2022 outlook), financial sector Blueprint
and trends/developments, as well as the
implications to the FI Boards.
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Training and education provided to the Board (continued)
During the financial year, the directors attended the following training programmes (continued):
Director
Tan Sri Datuk Seri
Rashpal Singh Randhay
(Appointed on 16 June
2021)

1.

Training attended
Board Orientation
Programme

Description of training
Broad understanding of Danajamin’s
business and operations.

(i)

24 June 2021
(Business and Risk
Management); and
(ii) 25 June 2021 –
(Finance, Legal,
Internal Audit and
Corporate Strategy &
Communications).
2. FIDE Programme – Module
A (Insurance)
(8-9 July 2021, 12-14 July
2021, 16 July 2021 and 2122 July 2021)

The FIDE Core Programme is designed
with specific focus on financial sector
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.

3. FIDE Programme – Module
B (Insurance)
(2-4 August 2021, 5-6
August 2021, 9 & 11
August 2021 and 12
August 2021)

The FIDE Core Programme is designed
with specific focus on financial sector
issues and challenges; and stresses on
honing the skills, and enhancing the
knowledge and expertise of directors.

4.

Sharing Session by HSBC
on Sustainability Linked
Funding
(1 November 2021)

Providing sustainability insights to
Danajamin in its transition to more
sustainable business models.

5.

Annual Dialogue with
Governor of Bank Negara
Malaysia
(3 December 2021)

Discussion on the topics of the economy
(2022 outlook), financial sector Blueprint
and trends/developments, as well as the
implications to the FI Boards.
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Remuneration structure
Board
In an effort to ensure that remuneration levels commensurate with the responsibilities, risks and time
commitment of the Board/Board Committees for effective management and operations of the
Company, the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) has been structured to take into
account the following:
(a) Reflection of the responsibilities in terms of intensity of work, time commitment and effort;
(b) Recognition of the different roles played by individual NEDs (e.g. as Chairman of the Board or
Board Committees);
(c) Based on the NEDs’ roles and contributions and should not be differentiated based on
knowledge and experience;
(d) Remuneration levels should not compromise an NED’s independence; and
(e) May reflect the complexity size and business of the Licensed Financial Institutions (“LFIs”).
As at 31 December 2021, the remuneration of the Board and Board Committees as reflected in the
Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors of Danajamin is as follows:
(i)

Directors' Fees
Board of Directors

RM

Chairman

15,000 per month

Member

6,000 per month

(ii) Meeting allowances
Board of Directors

RM

Chairman

5,000 per month

Member

3,500 per month

Board of Committee

RM

Chairman

5,000 per month

Member

3,500 per month

(iii) Benefits for the Chairman
The Chairman is entitled to either a company car with a value of up to RM400,000 with a driver
or car allowance of RM3,000 per month, with a driver to be provided by the Company.
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Remuneration structure (continued)
Board (continued)
(iv) Other Claimable Benefits
a)

Medical benefits:
•
•

b)

The Chairman is entitled for a full coverage of medical benefits for self and spouse.
The Non-Executive Directors are entitled for medical benefits with a coverage of up
to RM20,000 per annum. Medical coverage is inclusive of dental and is extended to
family members (i.e. spouse and children, subject to a maximum age of 21 years
old and provided that the child is not gainfully employed).

Business travel and accommodation.

The details of Directors' Remuneration are set out in Note 26(b) to the financial statements.
Remuneration Policy
CEO
The Board, through BRNC, annually reviews the performance of the CEO as a prelude to determining
his annual remuneration, bonus and other benefits in kind. In discharging this duty, BRNC evaluates
the performance of the CEO against the objectives set by the Board, thereby linking his remuneration
to performance.
The basic salary of the CEO was last reviewed upon the renewal of his contract for 2 years on 1st of
May 2020, with no further review for the tenure of the contract. The Company operates a bonus
scheme for all employees including its CEO. Bonus payable to the CEO is reviewed by the BRNC and
approved by the Board. The CEO is not entitled to fees.
Company
The Company’s continued success depends on the commitment of our people to embrace and live
our values, the commitment of the company to fulfil its people promise of a competitive total rewards
program, a performance driven, yet collegial working environment and the opportunity to grow
alongside our company.
Recognising the importance of having the right people with the right skills at all times, the Company's
remuneration strategy has been structured to attract, reward and retain high calibre and talented
employees.
Our remuneration policy serves to achieve the following imperatives:
•
•

•

To ensure alignment to the long-term objectives and business strategies of the Company, its
Core Values, whilst promoting a prudent risk culture;
To give the appropriate recognition to the various Divisions and individuals that contribute to
making the organisation more competitive, efficient and sustainable against pre-agreed
expectations; and
To ensure market relevance.
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Remuneration Policy (continued)
Company (continued)
Our remuneration framework is made up of the following components:
a)

b)

Basic salary – a core component where a job is priced against market. Internally, the job is
sized taking into account, amongst others, the level of responsibility and complexity of the role;
and
Annual performance bonus – a variable and discretionary pay component that is based on the
overall performance of the Company and that of the individual.

Our fixed remuneration is defined by the salary scale that differentiates between job levels. Positions
in Danajamin are matched to job levels based on factors such as knowledge, role impact, and level of
accountability. To ensure market relevance, the salary band is benchmarked against relevant
financial institutions.
This variable component of remuneration is paid through the annual performance bonus. It is
determined based on performance delivered for the financial year at the Company and individual
level. The variable remuneration is solely cash-based.
The remuneration framework is applicable to all employees of the Company across levels and
functions, with oversight by the Board. All matters pertaining to design and review of job grade, salary
scale, the overall annual performance bonus and the overall increment to the base salary is
recommended by the BRNC and approved by the Board.
To maintain the independence of officers in control functions comprising the Chief Risk Officer, Head
of Enterprise Risk Management & Compliance, Head of Credit Risk Division and Head of Internal
Audit, these positions report directly to the Board Risk and Board Audit Committees respectively. The
said Board Committees undertake decisions on appointment, KPI-setting and performance review of
the said roles. The Board has oversight for decisions on overall rewards and remuneration.
The Company deems the Management team and certain employees as Material Risk Takers. They
are as follows:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Material Risk Takers

No. of Individual

Chief Excutive Officer
Heads of Function
Heads of Division
Other Material Risk Takers

1
2
10
3

Other Material Risk Takers are defined as employees who are not members of Management but who:
•
can materially commit or control significant amounts of Danajamin’s resources or whose actions
are likely to have a significant impact on its risk profile; or
are among the most highly remunerated employees in Danajamin.
•
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Company (continued)
The Company’s Performance Management System (“PMS”) is the foundation of our remuneration
framework, which underscores the following:
•
•
•
•
•

Aligns deliverables against Danajamin’s long-term aspirations, business strategy and immediateyear’s Corporate KPI;
Disincentivises behaviours that contradict Danajamin’s Core Values;
Reinforces expected individual roles and accountabilities;
Discourages risk-taking that is inconsistent with the Company’s risk appetite and
Fosters a risk and compliance culture both in the spirit and letter of regulatory requirements.

The above imperatives are embedded in the various stages of the Performance Management cycle
from performance planning to performance review.
To ensure that the Company continues to deliver on its mandate and achieve its business
imperatives, performance planning and performance reviews for the CEO and senior management
team are subject to deliberation and recommendation by the BRNC prior to escalation to the Board
for its approval.
The Corporate Scorecard incorporates:
•
•
•

Financial metrics such as Profit Before Tax;
Client-centric metrics such as innovation in product application, investor base, issuer diversity
and issuance; and
People metrics such as culture and engagement, and learning and growth

These are later embedded into the individual scorecards of Management based on their respective
functional role.
The Corporate Scorecard also includes risk-based metrics i.e. risk sharing and portfolio quality.
Similar to the other metrics, these metrics are cascaded into the individual scorecard of relevant
members of Management.
During the annual performance review exercise, the overall achievement of Corporate Scorecard is
first reviewed and assessed by the BRNC, followed by the deliberation and approval of the full Board.
The corporate scorecard achievement has a direct bearing on the size of Company’s bonus pool.
Individual performance review ratings are calibrated through a moderation exercise performed by
Management that reviews the relative performance of employees of the same job grade. The final
rating derived from the moderation exercise is translated into a bonus quantum guided by a bonus
matrix.
In line with the practice of high-performance organisations, poor performers will not be accorded any
bonus payment. The Company also has in place a process that provides structure to managers to
ensure that employees are given sufficient opportunities to succeed, whilst also holding them
accountable for performance through its Performance Improvement Plan (PIP).
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Indemnifying Directors and Officers
The total amount of insurance premium paid for the directors and officers of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 was RM 130,390 (2020: RM 108,660).
Internal Control Framework
The Board has the primary responsibility to ensure that the Company maintains an adequate system
of internal controls, and that there are effective and efficient operations and risk management policies
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The Company has in place formal policies which govern the management and control of financial and
non-financial risks. The adoption of these policies enables a consistent approach to the management
of risks throughout the Company while the Board and Management are committed to maintain a riskconscious culture in the Company.
•

Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework
One of the building blocks used to identify and evaluate significant risks is the ERM Framework
which was implemented in 2010 and is continuously enhanced to reflect best practices. The
ERM Framework establishes systematic identification, assessment, mitigation, treatment,
monitoring and reporting of risks of each division within the Company, and is aimed at
embedding sound risk management culture within the Company to ensure that the Company
continues to expand its business with the appropriate risk management culture, discipline and
practices.
Given the importance of better operational risk monitoring and management, In 2017 the ERM
Framework was further enhanced with the creation of a standalone register for Operational Risk
for more effective risk management. As a standalone register, there is now greater emphasis on
identification and evaluation of operational risks. This is important as operational risk is a
relatively large risk component as compared to other risks in the greater ERM Framework.
This enhancement is consistent with BNM’s Operational Risk Guidelines and successfully
implemented since Q1 2018.
As an expansion to operational risk management, in 2021, the Company approved the
Technology and Cyber Risk Management Policy consistent with BNM’s Risk Management in
Technology Guidelines.

•

Credit risk management
Credit Risk Management Framework is guided by comprehensive credit policies which are
complemented by stringent underwriting standards and procedures. All proposals are subject to
a robust credit evaluation process supplemented with an independent credit assessment by
Credit Risk Division. The approval process involves the Management and/or Board Committees
based on Board approved delegated authority. At minimum, annual credit reviews are conducted
for each individual obligor with increased review frequency if warranted.
The frequency and depth of reporting provides pre-emptive opportunities to manage credit risk in
a timely manner.
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Internal Control Framework (continued)
•

Independent Credit Review ("ICR")
Arising from BNM’s Credit Risk Policy taking effect on Danajamin on 1 January 2021, as part of
internal controls, the Company is required to undertake ICR on its credit exposures to provide an
independent judgement on both the quality of credit appraisal as well as the scope, effectiveness
and timeliness of credit risk monitoring activities.
Observations and findings are communicated to Management and Board Committees with
feedback and actions taken to improve credit risk management processes. Additionally, to better
understand how problem credits developed and to identify lapses in the credit and monitoring
processes, and people, ad hoc reviews are conducted on problem credits.
To preserve objectivity, the ICR function is undertaken by an independent party outside the
scope of review, which includes those involved in credit risk assessment and credit approval
process. As such the ICR function resides within the Internal Audit Division.
As the ICR function forms part of the credit risk management process, it shall be subjected to
internal audit assessments as stipulated in the Credit Risk Policy.

•

Compliance Framework
The Company strives to operate within its compliance principles which is driven down by the
Board and Management to all staff to foster a strong compliance culture in the Company and the
way we do business. The Company is governed by the FSA, Companies Act 2016, BNM
licensing conditions and regulatory requirements and guidelines as well as other relevant and
applicable Acts and standards issued. The Compliance Framework also establishes systematic
identification of new requirements, monitoring and reporting expectations for the Chief
Compliance Officers along with the Board, BRC, senior management and staff to understand,
comply and manage compliance risks in the Company.
Since the enhancement of the monitoring and reporting process in 2016 to promote
accountability, senior management has been providing assurance to the Board on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the compliance risk management as well as improve operational efficiency.
The ERM & Compliance Division performs regular reviews of the Company’s ERM and
Compliance frameworks on a continuous basis.

•

Risk and Compliance Governance and Oversight
The Management Risk Committee ("MRC") is responsible to oversee the risk and compliance
management functions and practices of the Company, while the BRC oversees the management
of the same to ensure that these are functioning effectively.
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Internal Control Framework (continued)
•

Key policies and procedures
Policies and procedures are established in the Company to manage the day-to-day operations,
and are communicated and made available to all staff. The policies and procedures are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure they remain relevant to the current business
environment and in compliance with the current applicable laws and regulations. These policies
are then approved by the Board to formalize their application within the Company. The
procedures are reviewed and approved by the Division Heads.
These cover key areas of risks such as:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.
j.
k.
l.

Financial Guarantee Insurance (FGI), Financing Facilities Guarantee (FFG) and Investor
Guarantee Programme operations;
Credit Risk Management;
Portfolio Risk Management;
Investment;
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessement and Stress Testing;
Information Technology and Cyber Risk Management;
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism;
Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption (ABC);
Related Party Transactions;
Outsourcing;
Business Continuity Management; and
ERM and Compliance.

Internal Audit and Internal Control Activities
The Company has an in-house Internal Audit function which is guided by its Audit Charter and reports
to the BAC. The Internal Audit's primary role is to assist the BAC in the discharge of their duties and
responsibilities by independently reviewing and reporting on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management, internal control and governance processes.
The Internal Auditors perform regular reviews of the Company’s operational processes and system of
internal controls. Priority of auditable areas and frequency of reviews are determined by adopting a
risk-based approach, and leveraging on the Company’s risk management framework. The annual
internal audit plan is reviewed and approved by the BAC. Results of the audits conducted are then
reported to the BAC. While the Management is responsible to ensure that corrective actions on
reported observations are adequately taken within the stated time frame, the Internal Audit function
will monitor and update the BAC on the extent to which the corrective actions have been
implemented.
The BAC holds regular meetings to deliberate on findings and recommendations for improvement
highlighted by both the Internal and External Auditors as well as regulatory authorities on the state of
the Company’s internal control system. The minutes of the BAC meetings are subsequently tabled to
the Board for notation.
In addition to audit assignments, the Internal Audit function participates on a consultative basis in
projects, the development of new systems and information technology related initiatives.
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Details of the ratings of the Company and its debt securities are as follows:
Rating agency

Date

Rating/classification

Rating received

RAM Rating Services
Berhad ("RAM")

19 August 2021

Long-term Insurer Financial
Strength Rating
Short-term Insurer Financial
Strength Rating
RM2.0 billion Sukuk
Murabahah Programme:
- Senior Sukuk
- Subordinated Sukuk

AAA/Stable

Insurer Financial
Strength Rating
Short-term Counterparty
Credit Rating
RM2.0 billion Sukuk
Murabahah Programme:
- Senior Sukuk
- Subordinated Sukuk

AAA/Stable

Malaysian Rating
Corporation Berhad
("MARC")

30 July 2021

P1

AAA/Stable
AA1/Stable

MARC-1

AAAIS/Stable
AA+IS/Stable

DESCRIPTION OF THE RATINGS ACCORDED
RAM Rating Services Berhad ("RAM")
Long-term Insurer Financial Strength Rating
AAA

A financial guarantee insurance company rated AAA has a superior capacity to meet its
financial obligations to policy/contract holders and other creditors. This is the highest longterm insurer financial strength rating assigned by RAM.

Short-term Insurer Financial Strength Rating
P1

A financial guarantee insurance company rated P1 has a strong capacity to meet its shortterm financial obligations to policy/contract holders and other creditors. This is the highest
short-term insurer financial strength rating assigned by RAM.

Debt-Based Sukuk
AAA

The Senior Sukuk is equated to Danajamin’s long-term Insurer Financial Strength rating.
A sukuk rated AAA has superior safety for payment of financial obligations. This is the
highest long-term Issue Rating assigned by RAM to a debt-based sukuk.

AA1

The Subordinated Sukuk is rated 1-notch below Danajamin’s long term Insurer Financial
Strength rating of AAA to reflect the subordination of the securities to the Company’s
senior unsecured obligations. A sukuk rated AA has safety for payment of financial
obligations. The issuer is resilient against adverse changes in circumstances, economic
conditions and/or operating environments.

51

Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Available-for-sale securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Reinsurance assets
Tax recoverable
Claim recoverable
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

4
5
6 (a)
7
8
9
10
11
12

344
518
593
734,353
1,718,789
196,759
642
12,023
27,303
5,745
6,134
2,703,203

777
578
1,132
770,108
1,672,692
225,898
4,026
30,560
6,250
1,681
2,713,702

261,598
604
427
1,146
9,212
5,184
505,721
783,892

298,449
1,166
1,137
1,065
10,841
10,861
505,721
829,240

1,000,000
887,532
13,230
18,549
1,919,311

1,000,000
831,265
15,207
37,990
1,884,462

2,703,203

2,713,702

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Premium liabilities
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Deferred income
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk
TOTAL LIABILITIES

13
6 (b)
14
15
16
17
18

Share capital
Retained earnings
Contingency reserve
Available-for-sale fair value reserve
TOTAL EQUITY

19
20
21

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Gross earned premiums
Premiums ceded to reinsurance
Net earned premiums
Investment income
Realised gains
Other operating income

Note

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

22 (a)
22 (b)

48,232
(3,384)

69,517
361

23
24
25

44,848
72,378
3,078
2,751

69,878
88,894
9,373
1,036

123,055

169,181
(80,413)
80,443

Gross claim paid
Claim recovery
Change in gross/net claim liabilities

11

27,303
-

Net claim recovered

0

27,303

Management expenses
Finance cost
Profit before taxation
Taxation

26
27

(36,490)
(24,075)
89,793
(27,903)

(37,642)
(24,199)
107,370
(31,118)

61,890

76,252

(22,502)
(3,078)
6,139

16,469
(9,373)
(1,703)

(19,441)

5,393

42,449

81,645

6.19

7.63

28

Net profit for the financial year

30

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the
income statement:
Available-for-sale fair value reserve:
Net (loss)/gain arising during the financial year
Net gain transferred to profit or loss upon disposal
Tax effect thereon
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the
financial year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the
financial year

Basic earnings per share (sen)

17

29

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Non-Distributable
Share
capital
RM'000

AFS
fair value Contingency
reserve
reserve
RM'000
RM'000

Distributable
Retained
earnings
RM'000

Total
RM'000

At 1 January 2021
Net profit for the financial year
Dividend paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
Available-for-sale ("AFS") fair value reserve
Net loss arising during the financial year
Net transfer to income statement upon disposal
Tax effect thereon (Note 17)
Transfer from contingency reserve
At 31 December 2021

1,000,000
1,000,000

37,990
(19,441)
(22,502)
(3,078)
6,139
18,549

15,207
(1,977)
13,230

831,265
61,890
(7,600)
1,977
887,532

1,884,462
61,890
(7,600)
(19,441)
(22,502)
(3,078)
6,139
1,919,311

At 1 January 2020
Net profit for the financial year
Available-for-sale ("AFS") fair value reserve
Net gain arising during the financial year
Net transfer to income statement upon disposal
Tax effect thereon (Note 17)
Transfer from contingency reserve
At 31 December 2020

1,000,000
1,000,000

32,597
5,393
16,469
(9,373)
(1,703)
37,990

19,106
(3,899)
15,207

751,114
76,252
3,899
831,265

1,802,817
76,252
5,393
16,469
(9,373)
(1,703)
1,884,462

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

89,793

107,370

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net gain from disposal of AFS securities
Net (accretion of discount)/amortisation
of premium for AFS securities
Bad debts recovered
Interest income
Finance cost

Purchase of AFS securities
Proceeds from disposal of AFS securities
Proceeds from maturity of AFS securities
Decrease in deposits and placements
Investment income received
Decrease in insurance receivables
Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance assets
Increase in claim recoverable
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Decrease in premium liabilities
Decrease in insurance payables
Decrease in claim liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities
Increase in deferred income
Income tax paid
Net cash inflows from operating activities

462
1,623
499
9
(3,078)

1,176
1,994
799
(9,373)

(16)
(72,362)
24,075

9
(100)
(88,903)
24,199

41,005

37,171

(60,176)
33,059
40,000
(41,600)
68,250
29,139
3,384
(27,303)
505
(36,851)
(710)
(1,576)
81
(8,903)
38,304

79,126
10,000
(78,200)
106,079
74,478
(251)
(3,771)
(79,939)
(2,239)
(80,443)
523
1,065
(37,617)
25,982

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

(174)
(448)

(298)
(124)

127
(495)

(422)

(24,000)
(7,600)
(1,681)
(75)
(33,356)

(24,000)
(2,057)
(133)
(26,190)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Net cash outflows from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Profit paid on Subordinated Sukuk
Dividends paid
Cash payment for principal portion of lease liability
Interest portion of lease liability
Net cash outflows from financing activities
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

4,453

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

1,681

2,311

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

6,134

1,681

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and bank balances

6,134

1,681

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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A reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities is as follows:

Note

At 1 January 2021
Cashflow
Profit paid on subordinated sukuk
Cash payment on principal portion
of lease liability
Interest portion of lease liability
Interest charge / Profit expense
Modification/Renewals
At 31 December 2021

Lease Subordinated
Liabilities
Sukuk
RM'000
RM'000
1,166

505,721

506,887

(24,000)

(24,000)

(1,681)
(75)
75
1,119
604

24,000
505,721

(1,681)
(75)
24,075
1,119
506,325

2,811

505,655

508,466

(24,000)

(24,000)

24,066
505,721

(2,057)
(133)
24,199
412
506,887

-

27

At 1 January 2020
Cashflow
Profit paid on subordinated sukuk
Cash payment on principal portion
of lease liability
Interest portion of lease liability
Interest charge / Profit expense
Modification/Renewals
At 31 December 2020

-

27

(2,057)
(133)
133
412
1,166

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
1

GENERAL INFORMATION
Danajamin Nasional Berhad (“the Company”) is a public limited liability company, incorporated
and domiciled in Malaysia.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
("BPMB"), of which is incorporated in Malaysia.
The Company is principally engaged in providing financial guarantee insurance (“FGI”). There
were no significant changes in the nature of the principal activity during the financial year.
The address of the registered office and the principal place of business of the Company are
Level 18, Menara Allianz Sentral, No. 203, Jalan Tun Sambanthan, Kuala Lumpur Sentral
50470 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors on 28 March 2022.

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies have been used consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the financial statements. These accounting policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”), International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention unless otherwise indicated in the summary of significant accounting policies
below.
Notwithstanding the impact of COVID-19 and the assessments made by the
Management as presented in the Directors’ Report, the liquidity and ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern is not affected by the pandemic, at the date of
this report. Hence, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) and rounded to the
nearest thousand (RM’000) unless otherwise stated.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the MFRS requires the use of
certain accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
financial year. It also requires the Directors to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgement
are based on the Directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
may differ from those estimates.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used that are significant to the financial
statements and areas involving a higher degree of judgement and complexity are
disclosed in Note 3.
(a)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Company and are effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2021:
▪
▪

Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
Amendment to MFRS 16 Leases Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

The adoption of amendments listed above by the Company for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2021 did not have any material
impact on the current year or any prior year and is not likely to affect future periods
for the Company.
(b)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company:
(i)
▪
▪
▪
▪

Financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2022:
Amendments to MFRS 3 Business Combinations – Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to MFRS 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets - Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to MFRS 9 Fees in the '10 per cent' test for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company: (continued)
(ii)
▪

Financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2023:
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts:
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts replaces MFRS 4 Insurance Contract. MFRS
17 applies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance contracts and to
investment contracts with discretionary participating features if an entity also
issues insurance contracts. For fixed-fee service contracts whose primary
purpose is the provision of services, an entity has an accounting policy choice
to account for them in accordance with either MFRS 17 or MFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. An entity is allowed to account
financial guarantee contracts in accordance with MFRS 17 if the entity has
asserted explicitly that it regarded them as insurance contracts.
Insurance contracts, (other than reinsurance) where the entity is the
policyholder are not within the scope of MFRS 17.
Embedded derivatives and distinct investment and service components
should be ‘unbundled’ and accounted for separately in accordance with the
related MFRSs. Voluntary unbundling of other components is prohibited.
MFRS 17 requires a current measurement model where estimates are
remeasured at each reporting period. The measurement is based on the
building blocks of discounted, probability-weighted cash flows, a risk
adjustment and a contractual service margin (“CSM”) representing the
unearned profit of the contract. An entity has a policy choice to recognise the
impact of changes in discount rates and other assumptions that related to
financial risks either in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Company but not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company: (continued)
(ii)
▪

Financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2023: (continued)
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts: (continued)
Alternative measurement models are provided for the different insurance
coverages:
a)
b)

Simplified Premium Allocation Approach if the insurance coverage period
is a year or less.
Variable Fee Approach should be applied for insurance contracts that
specify a link between payments to the policyholder and the returns on
the underlying items.

The requirements of MFRS 17 align the presentation of revenue with other
industries. Revenue is allocated to the periods in proportion to the value of
the expected coverage and other services that the insurer provides in the
period, and claims are presented when incurred. Investment components are
excluded from revenue and claims.
Insurers are required to disclose information about amounts, judgements and
risks arising from insurance contracts.
The Company has not fully assessed the impact of MFRS 17 on its financial
statements, and will complete this process prior to the effective date of 1
January 2023.
▪
▪
▪

Amendments to MFRS 101 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent
Amendments to MFRS 101, MFRS Practice Statement 2 and MFRS 108 on
disclosure of accounting policies and definition of accounting estimates
Amendments to MFRS 112 on Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Except as disclosed above, the initial application of the other standards,
amendments to standards or interpretations issued by MASB effective for periods
subsequent to 1 January 2022 are not expected to have any material financial
impact to the current year and prior year financial statements of the Company.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost and subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
cost of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase
price, import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and any cost that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Cost also includes
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss during the
financial year in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment are computed on a straight-line
basis over the following estimated useful life:
Motor vehicles
Renovation
Computer hardware
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment

60 months
60 months
30 months
60 months
60 months

Depreciation on assets under construction commences when the assets are ready
for the intended use.
The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indications exist, an analysis is performed to
assess whether the carrying amount is fully recoverable. A write down is made if
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Refer to accounting policy
Note 2.2(e)(iv) on impairment of non-financial assets.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the net carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

(b)

Lease
The Company as a Lessee
Leases are recognised as right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and a corresponding lease
liability at the date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Company
(i.e. the commencement date).
Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of properties for
which the Company is a lessee, it has elected the practical expedient provided in
MFRS 16 not to separate lease and non-lease components. Both components are
accounted for as a single lease component and payments for both components
are included in the measurement of lease liability.
(i)

Lease Term
In determining the lease term, the Company considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

(ii)

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost comprising the following:

▪
▪
▪
▪

The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received
Any intial direct costs, and
Decommissioning or restoration costs
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Lease (continued)
The Company as a Lessee (continued)
(ii)

Right-of-use assets (continued)
ROU assets that are not investment properties are subsequently measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any). The ROU
assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the ROU asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. In addition, the ROU assets are adjusted for
certain remeasurement of the lease liabilities. ROU assets are presented as a
separate line item in the statement of financial position.

(iii) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments include the fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentive
receivable.
Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing is used. This is the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the ROU assets in a similar economic
environment with similar term, security and conditions.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
The Company presents the lease liabilities as a separate line item in the
statement of financial position. Interest expense on the lease liability is
presented within the finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income.
(iv) Reassessment of lease liabilities
A reassessment of the lease liability takes place if the cash flows change
based on the original terms and conditions, for example upon change in lease
term due to the Company exercises an option (purchase / termination /
extension) in a different way than the Company had previously determined
was reasonably certain. The lease liability will be remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Lease (continued)
The Company as a Lessee (continued)
(iiv) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
Short term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low
value assets comprise small items of office equipment which has low cost.
Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

(c)

Intangible assets and amortisation
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets are not capitalised, and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in
the financial year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
each financial year-end.
Computer software are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software.
Computer software are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives of thirty (30) months.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

(d)

Investments and financial assets
(i)

Available-for-sale ("AFS")
AFS securities are investments that are not classified as held-for-trading or
held-to-maturity or loan and receivables. They are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at fair value. Interest from the AFS
securities, calculated using the effective yield method, is recognised in profit
or loss, while dividends on AFS instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d)

Investments and financial assets (continued)
(i)

Available-for-sale ("AFS") (continued)
Except for impairment losses, any gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value adjustments are recognised directly in other comprehensive income
(i.e. AFS fair value reserve).
When the AFS security is derecognised, the cumulative fair value gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred
to profit or loss as net realised gains or losses on AFS security.

(ii)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. The
Company's loans and receivables comprise deposits and placements with
licensed banks, other assets and cash and cash equivalents in the statement
of financial position.
These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. After initial
measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost, using
the effective yield method, less allowance for impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

(e)

Impairment of assets
(i)

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost
The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a "loss event") and that loss event (or events) have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
profit or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i)

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying
amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If
‘loans and receivables’ or a ‘held-to-maturity investment’ have a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance
account. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on securities carried at
cost (e.g. equity instruments or which there is no active market or whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured) has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for similar securities. Such impairment losses shall not be
reversed.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale
In the case of AFS securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the financial asset below its cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for AFS
securities, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
If, in subsequent periods, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised in profit or loss, that
portion of impairment loss will be reversed in profit or loss. Impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity
instrument classified as AFS will not be reversed through profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(iv)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired,
whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
charged to profit or loss immediately.
A subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as
reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the
carrying amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation
and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

(f)

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.
The fair value for investments traded in an active market is based on quoted
market price at the end of the reporting date. Where current market prices are not
available, the price of the most recent transaction may be used provided that there
has not been significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the
transaction. If conditions have changed, the price will be adjusted to reflect the
change in conditions by reference to current prices for similar financial
instruments.
If the market for the investments is not active, fair value may be established by
using a valuation technique, which includes but is not limited to using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available,
references to the current fair value for of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. A valuation
technique should, where possible, incorporate observable market data about
market conditions and other factors that are likely to affect the investments’ fair
value.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g)

Guarantee fee and security
The Company provides financial guarantee insurance over private debt securities
and financing facilities for companies incorporated in Malaysia.
Bond issuers and/or obligors will pay a guarantee fee to Danajamin in return for
the Company’s guarantee to cover the oustanding amounts upon a default. The
guarantee fee is calculated based on a percentage of the nominal value of the
oustanding issue guaranteed amounts and is paid annually in advance.
The Company mitigates the risks associated with its provision of financial
guarantee insurance by:
▪
▪
▪

Securing its exposures against tangible security to be provided by the obligor
where possible;
Establishing designated accounts with specific disbursement conditions which
are controlled by Facility/Security Agents; and/or
Imposing various financial and non-financial covenants on the obligor in
ensuring financial discipline.

The Company is also able to impose additional conditions as it deems fit upon the
occurrence of a breach in covenant or a material adverse event.
(h)

Annual service fees for Danajamin PRIHATIN Guarantee Scheme
The Company has been appointed by Syarikat Jaminan Pembiayaan Perniagaan
Berhad (“SJPP”) to manage the DPGS on behalf of the Government of Malaysia.
In managing the DPGS, the Company charges one time processing fee and
annual monitoring fee. The one time processing fee is fully recognised upfront
upon the financial institution’s acceptance of the letter of approval issued by the
Company for the relevant financing facility to be admitted into the DPGS and the
issuance of the guarantee certificate by SJPP. The processing fee is charged for
the various work performed for deal assessments prior to issuance of the letter of
approval. The Company also charges annual monitoring fee for each approved
and accepted offer. The monitoring fee is charged annually up to the maturity of
the guarantee issued pursuant to the DPGS and is recognised as deferred
income. This annual monitoring fee is recognised upon the guarantee
commencement date in certificate issued by SJPP and up to the maturity of the
guarantee.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i)

Other revenue recognition
The Company charges other guarantee related fees such as upfront fees and
processing fees arising from Financial Guarantee Insurance (“FGI”) contracts
separately from the guarantee premium.
Upfront fee is charged by the Company on various work performed for deal
assessments prior to new issuance of FGI contract. Upfront fee is recognised
upon the Company committing to provide financial guarantee contract and obligors
accepting the Company's offer to provide such commitment. The upfront fee is
recognised over the period which the Company is committed to provide the FGI
contract, and is based on the earlier of validity period of the Company’s
commitment or expected drawdown/issuance of debt facilities. The upfront fee is
non-refundable. There is no element of significant financing as the period of
commitment is wholly upon the discretion of the obligors.
Processing fees may include extension fee and additional fee charged by the
Company on separate additional services including reassessment of obligors and
granting approval for extension. The processing fees are recognised when the
Company satisfies the performance obligations at a point in time or over time, and
evaluation is performed on a case by case basis in accordance with the terms and
conditions in the letter of offer or FGI contract.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument. The calculation includes significant fees
and transaction costs that are integral to the effective interest rate, as well as
premiums or discounts.
Gains or losses arising on disposal of financial assets are credited or charged to
profit or loss.

(j)

Financial guarantee insurance results
The financial guarantee insurance results are determined after taking into account
commissions, unearned premiums and claims incurred.
Gross premiums
Gross premiums are recognised in a financial year in respect of risks assumed
during the financial year. No insurers licensed under the Financial Services Act
("FSA") effective since 30 June 2013 (previously under the Insurance Act, 1996)
are allowed to accept reinsurance of the Company’s FGI risks. However, the
Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for some of its
financial guarantees to entities other than insurers licensed under the FSA.
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2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(j)

Financial guarantee insurance results (continued)
Unearned premium reserve
Unearned premium reserve (“UPR”) in respect of FGI policy is determined as an
amount calculated on the basis that the premiums written are earned in proportion
with the expiration of the exposure. This method is applied consistently to
premiums, reduced by the percentage of accounted gross direct commission
expenses to corresponding premiums.
Unexpired risk reserve
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risks and a liability
adequacy test is performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of
expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This
calculation is based on the present value of expected loss arising from the
Company’s guarantee obligations and an allowance for a provision of risk margin
for adverse deviation. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the
unearned premiums are inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in profit or loss
by setting up a provision for premium deficiency.
Claim liabilities
Claims liabilities relate to the FGI’s obligation, whether contractual or otherwise, to
make future payments in relation to all claims that have been incurred as at the
valuation date, with appropriate allowance for direct and indirect claims-related
expenses that the FGI expects to incur when settling these claims. Upon receipt of
a notice of claim, the FGI is obligated to make relevant payments of interest and
principal, to investors, in respect of a guaranteed debt obligation. The amount of
this obligation, including allowance for appropriate related expenses the FGI
expects to incur when paying the interest and principal, determines the claim
liabilities.

(k)

Reinsurance
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for some of
its financial guarantees. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from
companies where the insurance risks are ceded. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are in accordance with the related reinsurance contracts.
Ceded reinsurance arrangement does not relieve the Company from its obligation
to bondholders. Premiums are presented on a gross basis for ceded reinsurance.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k)

Reinsurance (continued)
Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more
frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting financial
year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event
that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company
may not receive all outstanding amounts due to the terms of the contract and the
event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will
receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in profit or loss.

(l)

Premium receivables
Premium receivables are recognised when risks are assumed (including
instalment premiums) and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.
If there is objective evidence that the premium receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the premium receivable accordingly and
recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Company gathers the
objective evidence that a premium receivable is impaired using the process as
described in Note 2.2(e).

(m)

Fee receivables
Fee receivables are amounts due from obligors for services rendered in the
ordinary course of business. Fee receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

(n)

Financial guarantee insurance liabilities
FGI liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are
charged. The FGI liabilities refer to the claims and premium liabilities of the
Company’s business, associated with the uncertainty of claims and unexpired
risks (with respect to unexpired FGI policies), resulting from the risks of increased
claims losses and under-estimation of premiums.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n)

Financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
The value of the FGI liabilities is the aggregate of the values of the premium
liabilities and the claim liabilities.
Premium liabilites
Premium liabilities refer to the greater of:
▪
▪

The aggregate of the unearned premium reserve (“UPR”); and
The best estimate value of the unexpired risk reserve (“URR”) at the valuation
date and a provision of risk margin for adverse deviation (“PRAD”). The URR
is the reserve required to cover for future claims and associated expenses
that are expected to emerge during the unexpired period of the FGI
guarantee. It is an estimate of the future obligations of the FGI taking into
account the likelihood and amount of the interest and principal that the FGI
expects to pay in the event of a default of an obligation with allowance for
expenses, including overheads and any cost of reinsurance expected to be
incurred during the unexpired period in administering these policies and
settling the relevant claims, and the timing of the payments.

Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities shall provide for reserves at a
specified level of adequacy with explicit prudential margins. In particular, the
liability valuation should aim to secure an overall level of sufficiency of reserves at
the 75% confidence level. To secure this level of adequacy, the Company
calculates the best estimate value of its FGI liabilities and apply a PRAD.
Claims liabilities
Claims liabilities relate to expired periods of exposure and earned premiums.
Claim liabilities are obligations, whether contractual or otherwise, to make future
payments in relation to all claims that have been incurred as at the valuation date,
with appropriate allowance for expected claims-related expenses.
The claims liability consists of two reserves. These being:
▪

▪

A reported but not admitted (“RBNA”) claims reserve, which is the reserve
held in respect of claims notified to the Company which the Company has not
accepted; and
An incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims reserve, which is the reserve
held in respect of defaults that have occurred, but where the Company has
not been notified of the default.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(n)

Financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
Claims liabilities (continued)
The financial positions of the companies insured are monitored on an ongoing
basis and any default would be highlighted immediately.
Details on the methodologies and assumptions in the valuation of FGI liabilities are
outlined in Note 3.
Contingency reserve
As a FGI, the Company is required to establish and maintain a contingency
reserve as a buffer against the risk of excessive losses occurring during adverse
economic cycles, in the manner prescribed in paragraph 44(6) of Insurance (FGI)
Regulations 2001 issued by BNM. The provision of this contingency reserve is
shown via a movement/transfer within the Statement of Changes in Equity.

(o)

Income taxes
Tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax. The tax expense
or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o)

Income taxes (continued)
Deferred tax is provided on a temporary difference at the date of statement of
financial position between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:
(i)

(ii)

Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit not taxable
profit or loss; and
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:
(i)

(ii)

Where the deferred tax assets relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each date of statement of
financial position and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o)

Income taxes (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss
for the financial year, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised
directly in equity, the deferred tax is also recognised in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(p)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, social security
contributions and non-monetary benefits are recognised as expense in the
financial year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of
the Company.

(ii)

Defined contribution plan
As required by law, the Company makes contribution to the Employees’
Provident Fund (“EPF”), a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
contributions to the EPF are charged to profit or loss in the financial year to
which they relate. Once contributions have been made, the Company has no
further payment obligations.

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and bank balances, excluding deposits and placements with licensed banks
which are held for investment purpose.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(r)

Insurance payables and other liabilities
Insurance payables and other liabilities are recognised when due and measured
on initial recognition at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the
effective yield method.

(s)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company have a present legal or constructive
obligation, as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made.
Where the Company expect a provision to be reimbursed (for example, under an
insurance contract), the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value is material, the amount of the
provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost
expense.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t)

Share capital
(i)

Classification
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Other shares, if issued, are classified
as equity and/or liability according to the economic substance of the
contractual arrangement of the particular instrument.

(ii)

Share issue cost
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(iii) Dividend distribution
Distributions to holders of an equity instrument is recognised directly to equity.
The corresponding liability is recognised in the period in which the
shareholders’ right to receive the dividends are established or the dividends
are declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of
the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.
(iv) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the
financial year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial
year.
(u)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in the extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be estimated reliably.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The Company does
not recognise contingent assets but disclose their existence where inflows of
economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

86

Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(v)

Foreign currency transactions and balances
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

(w)

Subordinated Sukuk and finance cost
Subordinated Sukuk is recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Subordinated Sukuk is subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between initial recognised amount and the nominal value is recognised
in profit or loss over the year of the Sukuk using the effective profit method.
Finance cost on the Subordinated Sukuk (i.e. Sukuk profit) is recognised in profit
or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2,
Management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year as discussed below.
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities
The Company is subject to BNM’s Guidelines in valuing its FGI liabilities that is further
described in Note 2.2(n).
The FGI liabilities comprise:
▪
▪
▪

The best estimate value of the claim liabilities;
The best estimate value of the premium liabilities; and
The PRAD for each of the above best estimate values.

The best estimate value should reflect the statistical central estimate of the underlying
distribution of the FGI liabilities. The statistical central estimate is equal to the mean of
reasonable expected outcomes.
The calculation of the best estimate claims liabilities and premium liabilities are subject to
considerations of materiality.
(i)

Best estimates of claim liabilities
The claims liability consists of two reserves; reported but not admitted (“RBNA”) claims
reserve and an incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims reserve as described in Note
2.2(n).
The RBNA reserve is calculated by determining the reserve for each reported claim and
then aggregating the individual reserves. The reserve in respect of each reported claim is
determined by calculating the best estimate of future payments net of expected future
recoveries, allowing for claims-related expenses.
The IBNR is, in general, determined similarly to the RBNA where the best estimate of
future payments net of expected future recoveries is estimated while allowing for claimrelated expenses. However, adjustments may be made on a case-by-case basis as the
status of the default develops.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
(i)

Best estimates of claim liabilities (continued)
Incurred But Not Reported
Methodology

(i)

▪
▪
▪

Assumptions

(i)

▪

(ii)

In general, the IBNR shall be the amount of outstanding principal due to the
bondholders plus the value of one coupon for the claim in question.
This amount may be reduced by the value of any cash collateral that has
been deposited in the designated accounts.
The IBNR may be adjusted on a case-by-case basis as and when necessary
to reflect the latest development of the default.

Other tangible collateral pledged to the Company will require time to realise,
hence no value is ascribed to those collateral when the IBNR is established.

Best estimates of premium liabilities
Premium liabilities relate to unexpired periods of exposure and unearned premiums. The
best estimate premium liabilities amount is the higher of:
▪
▪

the unearned premium reserve ("UPR"); and
the best estimate value of the unexpired risk reserve (“URR”) at the valuation date
plus the PRAD for unexpired risks.

Unearned premium reserve
(i)

Methodology
▪

▪
▪
(ii)

The UPR established reflect unearned portion of premiums received to date,
plus future premiums receivable under the FGI policies issued at the valuation
date.
The UPR reserve is amortised over the term of the FGI policies.
A premium receivable is established in respect of future premiums receivable
under the FGI policies issued at the valuation date.

Assumptions
▪

The claims profile of the portfolio is approximately uniform over the contract
term.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
(ii)

Best estimates of premium liabilities (continued)
Unexpired risk reserve
(i)

Methodology
▪
▪
▪
▪

▪
▪
▪

The URR is calculated using a stochastic credit reserving model.
For each FGI policy, a transition matrix is used to randomly simulate changes
in the credit ratings of the issuer on a yearly basis.
The probability of the issuer defaulting over a one year period is assigned
based on the risk rating of the issuer.
The model then randomly simulates on the issuer defaulting in the remaining
term of the issuance using the risk ratings and the corresponding probabilities
of default.
The loss incurred is randomly simulated should the issuer default and the
present value is determined.
The steps are repeated for each FGI policy and the present value of future
defaults for each FGI policy is accumulated to determine the portfolio losses.
The simulation is repeated 100,000 times to construct a distribution of
portfolio losses and the average outcome is calculated to determine the URR.

The best estimate URR reflects the aggregate value of expected claim on each
FGI policy over the period from the valuation date until the expiry of that policy.
The URR calculation for the financial year 2021 has taken into account the Covid19 impact assessments which included adjustments to obligor’s credit rating and
valuation of its collaterals/securities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
(ii)

Best estimates of premium liabilities (continued)
Unexpired risk reserve (continued)
(ii)

Assumptions
The following assumptions have been adopted:
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

▪

(iii)

Multiple FGI policies can be issued under the one FGI facility agreement.
The calculation of URR does not allow for FGI policies that are expected to be
issued in the future.
Correlation between the bond issuer ratings is allowed for using an Asset
Value Model approach.
The recovery rate is assumed to be described by the Beta distribution.
Correlation between the recovery rates on the different FGI facilities is not
allowed.
The model assumes the average recovery rate is partially sensitive to the
level of security provided.
The allowance for policy administration expenses is made outside the model.
The policy administration allowance is determined by multiplying the policy
administration expense assumption by the UPR.
Claim handling expenses are implicitly allowed via the recovery rate
assumption adopted.

Best estimate of the provision of risk margin for adverse deviation ("PRAD")
(i)

(ii)

Methodology
▪
▪

PRAD is determined for claims liability and the URR separately.
The claims liability PRAD depends on nature of claims notified. In the event
where full provision has been made against a particular claim, the
corresponding PRAD will be set to zero as there is no potential for future
claims escalation.

▪

The URR PRAD is determined using the distribution of portfolio losses
calculated by the credit risk reserving model and has been set at the 75%
confidence level.

▪

The approach for determining the URR PRAD will be reviewed as the size of
the FGI portfolio grows. Volatility in the PRAD as a percentage of the best
estimate is expected at this stage in operations.

Assumptions
▪

The PRAD calculation does not allow for future FGI policies signed at the
valuation date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Valuation of financial guarantee insurance liabilities (continued)
(iv)

Reinsurance
The FGI liabilities is determined gross of reinsurance, with a reinsurance asset held on
the statement of financial position of the Company.
(i)

Methodology
▪

(ii)

The methodology for determining is consistent with that adopted for the FGI
liabilities.

Assumptions
▪

No adjustment is made to the reinsurance asset to reflect the risk of the
reinsurer defaulting as it is not considered material to the Company’s
operations.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Note

Motor
vehicles
RM'000

Renovation
RM'000

Computer
hardware
RM'000

Furniture
and
fittings
RM'000

Office
equipment
RM'000

Total
RM'000

Cost
At 1 January 2021
Additions
Disposals/write-offs
At 31 December 2021

375
(370)
5

2,460
2,460

3,797
161
(17)
3,941

1,455
1,455

731
13
744

8,818
174
(387)
8,605

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the financial year
Charge borne by a related party
Disposals/write-offs
At 31 December 2021

170
67
1
(234)
4

2,448
5
2,453

3,383
336
7
(17)
3,709

1,400
26
1,426

640
28
1
669

8,041
462
9
(251)
8,261

29

75

344

Net book value at 31 December 2021

26

1

93

7
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Note
Cost
At 1 January 2020
Additions
Disposals/write-offs
At 31 December 2020
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020
Charge for the financial year
Charge borne by a related party
Disposals/write-offs
At 31 December 2020
Net book value at 31 December 2020

26

Motor
vehicles
RM'000

Renovation
RM'000

Computer
hardware
RM'000

Furniture
and
fittings
RM'000

Office
equipment
RM'000

Total
RM'000

375
-

2,460
-

3,918
204
(325)

1,433
22
-

659
72
-

8,845
298
(325)

375

2,460

3,797

1,455

731

8,818

97
72
1
-

2,118
323
7
-

3,147
549
12
(325)

1,244
153
3
-

559
79
2
-

7,165
1,176
25
(325)

170

2,448

3,383

1,400

640

8,041

205

12

414

55

91

777

94
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Note

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

Computer software
Cost
At 1 January
Additions
Disposal/Write-offs

7,268
448
-

7,276
124
(132)

At 31 December

7,716

7,268

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation for the financial year
Amortisation borne by a related party
Disposal/Write-offs

6,690
499
9
-

6,007
799
16
(132)

7,198

6,690

518

578

26
26

At 31 December
Net book value at 31 December

6

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(a)

Right-of-use assets
Properties/
Total

Note
Cost
At 1 January 2021
Renewals
Matured

5,055
1,119
(1,807)

At 31 December 2021

4,367

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the financial year
Charge borne by related party
Matured

#REF!
26
35
-

At 31 December 2021

#REF!

Net book value at 31 December 2021
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(a)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Cost
At 1 January 2020
Modification/Renewals
Matured
At 31 December 2020

Equipment
RM'000

Total
RM'000

4,652
403
-

97
9
(106)

4,749
412
(106)

5,055

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020
Charge for the financial year
Charge borne by related party
Matured

(b)

Properties
RM'000

1,937
1,942
44
-

53
52
1
(106)

5,055
1,990
1,994
45
(106)

At 31 December 2020

3,923

-

3,923

Net book value
at 31 December 2020

1,132

-

1,132

1,166
1,119
75
(1,756)

-

1,166
1,119
75
(1,756)

Lease Liabilities
At 1 January 2021
Modifications/Renewals
Interest charged
Payment
At 31 December 2021

604

-

604

Payables within 12 months

604

-

604

At 1 January 2020
Modifications/Renewals
Interest charged
Payment

2,766
403
131
(2,134)

At 31 December 2020

1,166

Payables within 12 months
Payables after 12 months

1,132
34
1,166

45
9
2
(56)
-

2,811
412
133
(2,190)
1,166
1,132
34
1,166

Expenses related to lease does not include the expenses relating to the leases with a lease
term of one month or less and expense related to leases of low-value assets.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

20,514
95,806
618,033

31,220
80,153
658,735

734,353

770,108

80,975
653,378

46,550
723,558

734,353

770,108

At fair value
Unquoted in Malaysia:
Malaysian Government Securities ("MGS")
Government Investment Issues ("GII")
Corporate debt securities

Mature within 12 months
Mature after 12 months

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1 :

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 :

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 :

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Recurring fair value measurements
The available-for-sale securities, which are under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, are
measured using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by prices from
observable current market transactions and for which pricing is obtained via pricing agencies
and other service provider. Where prices have not been determined in an active market,
instruments with fair values are based on broker quotes.

8

DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The deposits and placements are maturing within 12 months, and the carrying amounts
approximate the fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these balances.
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9

INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Premium receivables
Guarantee fee related receivables
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

196,759

225,898

400
(400)

400
(400)

-

-

Total insurance receivables

196,759

225,898

Receivable within 12 months
Receivable after 12 months

40,946
155,813

43,642
182,256

196,759

225,898

196,759

225,898

Gross/net amount of recognised financial assets
presented in the statement of financial position

There are no financial liabilities subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement and financial instruments received as collateral as at 31 December 2021 (2020 : Nil).

10 REINSURANCE ASSETS
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

Reinsurance assets

642

4,026

Receivable within 12 months
Receivable after 12 months

407
235

2,189
1,837

642

4,026

11 CLAIM RECOVERABLE/RECOVERY
The Company recognised claim recoverable/recovery amounting to RM27,302,597 during the
year representing distribution settlement amount receivable from the corporate guarantor of the
obligor which the Company fully settled the claim on 6 March 2020. Subsequent to the year end,
the claim recoverable/recovery was received by the Company on the 27 January 2022.
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12 OTHER ASSETS
2021
RM'000
Deposits
Prepayments
Other receivables

2020
RM'000

731
982
4,032

731
1,029
4,490

5,745

6,250

The balances are receivable within 12 months, and the carrying amounts approximate the fair
values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these balances.
13 PREMIUM LIABILITIES
Note

Gross
RM'000

Reinsurance
RM'000

Net
RM'000

Unexpired risk reserve
At 1 January 2021
Premiums written during the
financial year
Premiums earned during the
financial year

298,449
22

11,381

22

(48,232)

(4,026)
3,384

294,423
11,381
(44,848)

At 31 December 2021

261,598

(642)

260,956

Payable within 12 months
Payable after 12 months

66,243
195,355

(407)
(235)

65,836
195,120

261,598

(642)

260,956

At 1 January 2020
Premiums written during the
financial year
Premiums earned during the
financial year

378,388

(3,775)

374,613

At 31 December 2020

298,449

(4,026)

294,423

Payable within 12 months
Payable after 12 months

86,545
211,904

(2,189)
(1,837)

84,356
210,067

298,449

(4,026)

294,423

Unexpired risk reserve

(10,422)

110

(10,312)

(69,517)

(361)

(69,878)

The URR calculation for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 has taken into account the
COVID-19 impact assessments which included adjustments to obligors' credit rating and
valuation of their collaterals/securities.
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14 INSURANCE PAYABLES
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

Reinsurance premiums payable

427

1,137

Payable within 12 months
Payable after 12 months

427
-

710
427

427

1,137

427

1,137

Gross/net amount of recognised financial liabilities
presented in the statement of financial position

There are no financial assets subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement and financial instruments received as collateral as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

15 DEFERRED INCOME
2021
RM'000
FGI upfront fee
DPGS monitoring fee

Payable within 12 months
Payable after 12 months

2020
RM'000

373
773

612
453

1,146

1,065

860
286

694
371

1,146

1,065

The FGI upfront fee is recognised over the period which the Company is committed to provide
the FGI contract, and is based on the earlier of validity period of the Company's commitment or
expected drawdown/issuance of debt facilities. The DPGS monitoring fee is recognised as
deferred income and the recognition of income starts from the start of the issuance of facility by
the financial institution up to the maturity of the guarantee.
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16 OTHER LIABILITIES
2021
RM'000
Provision for unutilised leave
Provision for loan interest subsidy
Provision for audit fees
Provision for bonus and related EPF
Amount due to a related party
Accrued expenses
Other payables

2020
RM'000

65
23
265
2,975
79
1,779
4,026

269
43
185
3,878
137
1,954
4,375

9,212

10,841

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment. The balances are payable within 12 months, and the carrying amounts approximate
the fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these balances.
17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting are shown in the
statement of financial position.

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax assets
Before offsetting
Offsetting
After offsetting

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

(5,184)

(10,861)

910
(910)

1,202
(1,202)

-

-

Deferred tax liabilities
Before offsetting
Offsetting

(6,094)
910

(12,063)
1,202

After offsetting

(5,184)

(10,861)
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17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial year are as follows:
Property,
plant and
equipment
RM'000

Intangible
assets
RM'000

91
(12)
-

10
(45)
-

(67)
(135)
-

(11,996)
6,139

1,101
(270)
-

(10,861)
(462)
6,139

Balance as at 31 December 2021

79

(35)

(202)

(5,857)

831

(5,184)

Balance as at 1 January 2020
(Charge)/credited to profit or loss
Charged to equity

224
(133)
-

(183)
193
-

202
(269)
-

(10,293)
(1,703)

1,180
(79)
-

(8,870)
(288)
(1,703)

91

10

(67)

(11,996)

1,101

(10,861)

Note

Balance as at 1 January 2021
(Charge)/credited to profit or loss
Credited to equity

Balance as at 31 December 2020

28

28
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AFS
securities
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AFS fair
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reserve
RM'000

Provisions
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18 SUBORDINATED SUKUK
On 6 October 2017, the Company issued Subordinated Sukuk Murabahah of RM500 million
which is a part of a Sukuk Programme of up to RM2.0 billion for the issuance of Senior and
Subordinated Sukuk Murabahah.
The Subordinated Sukuk has a tenure of 10 years, with a callable option made available from
year 5 onwards. The Subordinated Sukuk, which will be redeemed at its nominal value upon
maturity, is subordinated unsecured obligations of the Company. The Company has classified the
principal to be due within 12 months as the Company can exercise its discretion to call upon the
Sukuk on or after 6 October 2022.
Principal

Maturity date

Profit rate

Profit payment

RM500 million

6 October 2027

4.80% per annum

Accrued and payable
semi-annually in arears

2021

Due within 12 months
Due after 12 months

Fair value

2020

RM'000

RM'000

505,721
505,721

5,721
500,000
505,721

507,940

517,715

The estimated fair value is generally based on quoted and observable market prices at the date
of the statement of financial position and is within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
19 SHARE CAPITAL
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid up:
At 1 January/31 December

1,000,000
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20 RETAINED EARNINGS
Under the single-tier tax system which came into effect from the year of assessment 2008
onwards, companies are not required to have tax credits under Section 108 of the Income Tax
Act, 1967 for dividend payment purposes. Dividends paid under this system are tax exempt in the
hands of shareholders.
The Company may distribute single-tier dividends to its shareholders out of its retained earnings.
Persuant to Section 51(1) of the Financial Services Act 2013, the Company is required to obtain
BNM's written approval prior declaring or paying any dividends. Persuant to the RBC Framework,
the Company shall not pay dividends if its Capital Adequacy Ratio position is less than its
Individual Target Capital Level ("ITCL") or if the payment of dividend would impair its Capital
Adequacy Ratio position to below its ITCL.

21 CONTINGENCY RESERVE

Contingency reserve

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

13,230

15,207

Pursuant to paragraph 44(6) of Insurance (Financial Guarantee Insurance) Regulatory 2001, the
Company is required to maintain contingency reserves in respect of every policy which is in force
at the end of the financial year, computed based on a prescribed formula.

22 NET EARNED PREMIUMS

(a)

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

13

11,381
36,851

(10,422)
79,939

48,232

69,517

Gross earned premiums
Gross written premium
Change in gross premium liabilities

(b)

Note

Premiums ceded to reinsurance
Gross written premium ceded
Change in ceded premium liabilities

Net earned premiums

13

(3,384)

110
251

(3,384)

361

44,848
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22 NET EARNED PREMIUMS (CONTINUED)
(i)

Gross written premium

Gross written premium during the financial year
Reversal of premium due to early redemption

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

30,567
(19,186)

51,704
(62,126)

11,381

(10,422)

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

34,290

36,348

38,072
16

52,555
(9)

72,378

88,894

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

23 INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest income from AFS securities
Interest income from deposits and placements with
licensed banks
Net accretion of discounts/(amortisation of premiums)

24 REALISED GAINS

Net gain from disposal of AFS securities

3,078

9,373

25 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021
RM'000
Guarantee related fees
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
DPGS related income
Other income
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(9)
960
48
2,751

2020
RM'000
536
468
32
1,036
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26 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

Staff costs
Directors' remuneration
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Bad debts recovered
Repairs and maintenance
Postage, telephone and telefax
Printing and stationery
Professional fees
Other expenses
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Note

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

26(a)
26(b)
26(c)
4
5
6

26,627
1,762
316
462
499
1,623
1,290
180
157
2,178
1,396

26,881
1,341
497
1,176
799
1,994
(100)
1,099
174
224
2,622
935

36,490

37,642
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26 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(a)

Staff costs

Salaries and bonus
SOCSO contributions
EPF contributions
Training expenses
Other benefits (inclusive of interest subsidy
and unutilised leave)

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

19,681
90
3,495
508

18,975
86
3,388
530

2,853

3,902

26,627

26,881

Included in staff costs are the remuneration, including benefits-in-kind, attributable to the CEO of
the Company during the financial year which amounted to RM1,262,000 (2020: RM1,227,000).
Salary and
other
remuneration*
RM'000

Benefitsin-kind
RM'000

Bonus
RM'000

Total
RM'000

1,125

7

130

1,262

1,121

7

99

1,227

2021
CEO
Mohamed Nazri bin Omar
2020
Managing Director/CEO
Mohamed Nazri bin Omar

* The salary and other remuneration during the year include employer contribution to Employees
Provident Fund ("EPF") amounting to RM208,464 (2020: RM200,416).
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26 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Fees and
allowance
RM'000

Benefitsin-kind
RM'000

Other
remuneration
RM'000

177

14

-

191

85
297
263
202
264

-

-

85
297
263
202
264

254

-

-

254

110

-

-

110

96

-

-

96

1,748

14

-

1,762

270

21

-

291

72
177
243
199
178

-

-

72
177
243
199
178

137

-

-

137

44

-

-

44

21

-

1,341

Total
RM'000

2021
Non-Executive Directors
Md Yusof Hussin
(retired on 22 August 2021)
Suresh Menon
(retired on 10 May 2021)
Choo Yee Kwan
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Elakumari Kantilal
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
Rosnah Dato' Kamarul Zaman
(appointed on 6 January 2021)
Faisal Ismail
(appointed on 25 May 2021 and
resigned on 19 November 2021)
Tan Sri Datuk Seri Rashpal
Singh Randhay
(appointed on 16 June 2021)

2020
Non-Executive Directors
Md Yusof Hussin
Mohamed Rashdi Mohamed
Ghazali (retired on 19 June
2020)
Suresh Menon
Choo Yee Kwan
Datuk Che Mokhtar Che Ali
Elakumari Kantilal
Muhammad Shahril Othman
(retired on 31 October 2020)
Imri Dolhadi Ab Wahab
(appointed on 1 November
2020)

1,320
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26 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
(c)

Auditors' remuneration
The details of the auditor's remuneration during the financial year are as follows:
2021
RM'000
Audit fees
Non-audit fees

2020
RM'000

291
25

247
250

316

497

27 FINANCE COSTS

Finance cost - Sukuk Profit
Interest expense on lease liabilities

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

24,000
75

24,066
133

24,075

24,199

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

26,950
491

31,495
(665)

28 TAXATION

Current year tax:
Current year tax
Under/(over) provision in prior year
Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of
temporary difference
Tax expense

462

288

27,903

31,118

The income tax is based on the statutory tax rate of 24% (2020: 24%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the financial year.
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28 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of income tax expenses applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory
income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24%
(2020: 24%)
Tax effects of:
Expenses not deductible
Under/(over) provision in prior year

2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

89,793

107,370

21,550

25,769

5,862
491
27,903

6,014
(665)
31,118

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the financial year:
2021
Net profit for the financial year (RM'000)
Weighted average number of shares in issue (RM'000)
Basic earnings per share (sen)

2020

61,890

76,252

1,000,000

1,000,000

6.19

7.63

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date and
the date of completion of these financial statements.
Diluted earnings per share are not presented as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
as at the end of financial year.

110

Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
30 DIVIDEND PAID
The final dividend of 0.76 sen per ordinary shares under single tier system amounting to
RM7,600,000.00 for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 was paid to entitled shareholder
of the Company on 31 May 2021.
31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2021
RM'000
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted for:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets - computer software

2020
RM'000

115

95
306

115

401

There is no capital expenditure approved but not contracted for as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
nil).
32 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE PORTFOLIO
Concentration of financial guarantee contracts portfolio outstanding based on sector and
approved underwriting limit is tabulated as follows:
2021
Guaranteed
amount

Facility
amount

2020
Guaranteed
amount

364,500
280,000
225,000
147,900
227,000
370,000
850,000

364,500
280,000
225,000
147,900
227,000
400,000
850,000

150,000
365,800
300,000
300,000
200,200
381,000
433,657
850,000

Facility
amount

Sector
Agriculture
Power
Education
Consumer products
Oil and gas
Real estate
Property development
Toll and highways
Construction and
building materials

150,000
365,800
300,000
300,000
200,200
456,000
470,239
850,000

100,455

100,455

439,500

439,500

2,564,855

2,594,855

3,420,157

3,531,739
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33 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The related parties of, and their relationship with the Company, are as follows:
Related parties

Relationship

Credit Guarantee Corporation
Malaysia Berhad

Shareholder up untill 22 December 2021

Ministry of Finance (Incorporated)

Shareholder up untill 22 December 2021

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad

Shareholder effective 22 December 2021

Bank Negara Malaysia

Related party of shareholder

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the

Key management personnel are those people defined as having authority and reponsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, either directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel of the Company include all the Directors of the Company and
employees of the Company who make certain critical decisions in relation to the strategic
direction of the Company.
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Company had
the following transactions and balances with related parties during the financial year:
(a)

Significant related party balances
Note
Other liabilities
Amount due to a related party

(b)

16

2021
RM'000
79

2020
RM'000
137

Key management personnel's remuneration
2021
RM'000
Salaries and benefits
Employer's EPF contributions
Directors' remuneration

26(b)

112

2020
RM'000

7,677
1,260
1,762

7,978
1,302
1,341

10,699

10,621
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34 REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENT
The Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") Framework as prescribed by Bank Negara Malaysia ("BNM")
came into effect on 1 January 2015. Under the prescribed RBC Framework, the Company needs
to maintain a capital adequacy level that commensurate with the risk profiles. The Company is
required to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio ("CAR") of 130%. The Company has
been in compliance with the said requirement.
The capital structure of the Company as at 31 December 2021, as prescribed under the RBC
Framework is shown below:
2021
RM'000
Tier 1 Capital
Paid-up share capital
Retained earnings

Tier 2 Capital
Contingency reserve
Available-for-sale fair value reserve
Subordinated term debts
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2020
RM'000

1,000,000
887,532

1,000,000
831,265

1,887,532

1,831,265

13,230
18,549
500,000

15,207
37,990
500,000

531,779

553,197

2,419,311

2,384,462
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35 ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT ("ERM") FRAMEWORK
The ERM framework is to ensure that the Company operates within the risk appetite set by the
Board and to ensure that managing risk becomes an integral part of the Company’s risk culture.
The Risk Management Division spearheads the development and implementation of the ERM
framework for the Company with input from the respective divisions.
(a)

Capital Management Framework
The Company is governed under the Risk Based Capital Framework as prescribed by
BNM effective 1 January 2015. The Company’s capital management policy is to maintain a
strong capital position with sufficient buffer to meet its guaranteed obligations and
regulatory requirements. The Company is also governed by the capital requirements as
measured by the local rating agencies to maintain its “AAA(fg)” rating, and works closely
with the local rating agencies on the capital requirements to ensure that the “AAA” rating is
maintained.

(b)

Risk and Compliance Governance Frameworks
The BRC provides the oversight on the risk management initiatives. In managing the
Company’s risk management framework, the following Management Committees
comprising the Chief Executive Officer and key members of the Senior Management team
are being instituted:
▪
▪
▪
▪

Management Committee ("MC")
Information Technology Steering Committee (“ITSC”)
Management Underwriting Committee (“MUC”)
Management Risk Committee (“MRC”)

The MC is responsible for providing leadership, direction and strategic oversight with
regard to all matters of the Company. The ITSC is responsible for matters relating
information technology covering all areas ranging from system requirements, resources
and security. The MUC oversees the credit risk aspects by evaluating the risk profile of all
underwriting proposals and ensuring rewards commensurate with any risk taken. The
MRC is responsible to overee all risk management fuctions and practices of the Company.
The MC and ITSC report to the Board while MUC and MRC report directly to the BUC and
BRC respectively.
(c)

Regulatory Framework
The Company is governed by the FSA as well as guidelines from BNM. All company’s
policies are approved by the BRC and other Board Committees and endorsed by the
Board.
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35 ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT ("ERM") FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)
(d)

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the potential loss arising from claims on the financial guarantee insurance
covers provided by the Company resulting from the defaults by obligors or counterparties
in meeting their contractual obligations on a timely basis. Credit risk arises not only from
obligors but also from investments in private debt securities undertaken by the Company.
In mitigating this credit risk, the Company has instituted a set of credit and investment
policies governing the underwriting and investment criteria and a robust credit evaluation
and approval process.
The credit risk objectives of the Company are set by the Board, and are implemented and
monitored within a structured approval process, including adherence to credit policies,
maximum group exposure limits, maximum industry limits and portfolio monitoring.
The credit risk management framework exists to provide a structured and disciplined
process to support these objectives. The integrity of the credit risk function is maintained
by the independence of the credit chain and is supported by comprehensive risk analysis
and monitoring process.

(e)

Operational risk
The Company manages operational risk via an operational risk framework under the
larger ERM Framework which was approved by the BRC. On a continuous basis, ERM
and Compliance Division monitor operational risks via risk and controls self-assessment
reviews, operational risk register reviews and other ad-hoc reviews, in alignment with
BNM's Guidelines on Operational Risk and more recently with BNM’s Risk Management in
Technology Guidelines.
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Sensitivity analysis
Sensitivity analysis to the best estimate URR by the parameters as at 31 December 2021 are computed based on the following key
assumptions:
Impact on
Impact on
Impact on
gross premium
net premium
Impact on
Impact on
gross URR
liabilities*
liabilities* profit before tax
equity
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
RM'000
Change in assumptions
31 December 2021
Improve in credit rating by 1 grade
Worsen in credit rating by 1 grade
Increase in recovery rate by 5%
Decrease in recovery rate by 5%

(33,900)
41,700
(13,600)
17,700

(30,300)
(28,900)
38,000

(30,800)
(28,800)
37,800

(30,800)
(28,800)
37,800

(23,400)
(21,900)
28,800

(36,500)
46,800
(14,800)
20,500

(26,300)
(26,300)
42,000

(25,400)
(25,400)
41,400

(25,400)
(25,400)
41,400

(19,304)
(19,304)
31,464

31 December 2020
Improve in credit rating by 1 grade
Worsen in credit rating by 1 grade
Increase in recovery rate by 5%
Decrease in recovery rate by 5%

* There is an impact on the gross premium liabilities, net premium liabilities and profit before tax as the aggregate gross URR as at 31
December 2021 of RM261.6 million (December 2020: RM298.4 million) is higher than the gross UPR of RM231.3 million (December
2020: RM272.1 million).
# The impact on the equity is net of tax.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
The financial risks which the Company is exposed to are credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk. The Company carried out its financial risk management through internal control
procedures, standard operating procedures, investment strategy and adherence to all rules and
regulations as stipulated by the guidelines for investments issued by BNM.
a)

Credit risk
Credit exposure
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each
class of financial assets.
Credit exposure by credit rating
The table below provides information regarding the risk exposure of the Company by
classifying assets according to the Company's credit ratings of counterparties.
Neither pastdue nor
impaired
RM'000
31 December 2021
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with
licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2020
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with
licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

* Exclude prepayments
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734,353
20,514
95,806
618,033

Impaired
RM'000
-

Total
RM'000
734,353
20,514
95,806
618,033

1,718,789
197,159
4,763
6,134

(400)
-

1,718,789
196,759
4,763
6,134

2,661,198

(400)

2,660,798

770,108
31,220
80,153
658,735

-

770,108
31,220
80,153
658,735

1,672,692
226,298
5,221
1,681

(400)
-

1,672,692
225,898
5,221
1,681

2,676,000

(400)

2,675,600
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a) Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposure by credit rating (continued)
The table below provides information regarding the credit exposure of the Company by classifying assets according to the latest available Rating Agency of Malaysia’s
(“RAM”) credit ratings of counterparties. AAA is the highest possible rating.
Neither past-due nor impaired
Weighted
average
%
31 December 2021
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements
with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents
Allowance for impairment

4.21
4.56
4.79
2.26

Government
A2 guaranteed
RM'000
RM'000

AAA
RM'000

AA1
RM'000

AA2
RM'000

AA3
RM'000

A1
RM'000

35,321
35,321

66,049
66,049

216,665
216,665

-

170,721
170,721

-

245,597
20,514
95,806
129,277

-

78,829
196,759
1,075
-

-

645,072
-

703,060
5,059
-

191,064
-

100,764
-

-

4,763
-

311,984

66,049

861,737

708,119

361,785

100,764

245,597

4,763

* Exclude prepayments
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Unrated
RM'000

Impaired
RM'000

400
(400)
-

Total
RM'000

734,353
20,514
95,806
618,033
1,718,789
197,159
4,763
6,134
(400)
2,660,798
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a) Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposure by credit rating (continued)
Neither past-due nor impaired
Weighted
average
%
31 December 2020
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements
with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents
Allowance for impairment

4.23
4.66
4.84
2.46

Government
A2 guaranteed
RM'000
RM'000

AAA
RM'000

AA1
RM'000

AA2
RM'000

AA3
RM'000

A1
RM'000

25,805
25,805

67,431
67,431

210,185
210,185

-

172,668
172,668

-

294,019
31,220
80,153
182,646

-

35,649
225,898
1,029
-

-

623,342
496
-

696,746
156
-

216,758
-

100,197
-

-

5,221
-

288,381

67,431

834,023

696,902

389,426

100,197

294,019

5,221

* Exclude prepayments
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Unrated
RM'000

Impaired
RM'000

400
(400)
-

Total
RM'000

770,108
31,220
80,153
658,735
1,672,692
226,298
5,221
1,681
(400)
2,675,600
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Collateral
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk
of the counterparty. Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of
collateral and the valuation parameters. Credit risk is also mitigated by entering into
collateral agreements. Management monitors the market value of the collateral, requests
additional collateral when needed and performs impairment valuation, when applicable.

Market value
Nature of collateral
2021
RM'000
Commercial land
Industrial land
Oil palm plantation/agricultural land
Commercial property
Quoted shares

(b)

753,000
128,203
1,746,842
293,895
2,921,940

2020
RM'000
1,461,033
128,203
704,990
1,033,342
349,497
3,677,065

Impaired financial assets
At 31 December 2021, based on individual and collective assessment of receivables,
there are impaired receivables of RM400,000 (2020: RM400,000). No collateral is held
as security for any past due or impaired assets. A reconciliation of the allowance for
impairment losses for insurance receivables is as follows:
2021
RM'000
At 1 January
Recovery for the year:
Insurance receivables
At 31 December

(c)

2020
RM'000

400

500

400

(100)
400

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Company does not have the availability of funds to meet its
obligations as and when they fall due.
The Company’s funds shall be managed and invested with prudence. The
chosen shall always take into consideration the liquidity requirements of the
meet any potential claim liabilities at all times. The Company's portfolio of
shall always conform to the limits and regulations as may be determined
financial guarantee insurers from time to time.
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(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturity profiles
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company based on remaining
contractual obligations, including interest/profit payable and receivable. Reinsurance assets and premium liabilities have been excluded
from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations.

31 December 2021
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred income
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Other liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk

* Exclude prepayments

Carrying
value
RM'000

Up to a
year
RM'000

> 1 year
to 3 years
RM'000

> 3 years
to 5 years
RM'000

> 5 years
RM'000

Total
RM'000

734,353
20,514
95,806
618,033
1,718,789
196,759
4,763
6,134

106,652
696
4,015
101,941
1,718,789
40,946
4,763
6,134

429,762
20,348
8,031
401,383
56,440
-

61,557
28,031
33,526
46,959
-

288,297
102,741
185,556
52,414
-

886,268
21,044
142,818
722,406
1,718,789
196,759
4,763
6,134

2,660,798

1,877,284

486,202

108,516

340,711

2,812,713

1,146
604
427
9,212
505,721

860
604
427
9,212
523,934

236
-

50
-

-

1,146
604
427
9,212
523,934

517,110

535,037

236

50

-

535,323
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(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2020
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with licensed banks
Insurance receivables
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred income
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Other liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk

Carrying
value
RM'000

Up to a
year
RM'000

> 1 year
to 3 years
RM'000

> 3 years
to 5 years
RM'000

> 5 years
RM'000

Total
RM'000

770,108
31,220
80,153
658,735
1,672,692
225,898
5,221
1,681

74,171
11,112
3,192
59,867
1,672,692
43,643
5,221
1,681

344,187
21,044
6,383
316,760
68,556
-

189,826
6,383
183,443
51,592
-

313,636
99,344
214,292
62,107
-

921,820
32,156
115,302
774,362
1,672,692
225,898
5,221
1,681

2,675,600

1,797,408

412,743

241,418

375,743

2,827,312

1,065
1,166
1,137
10,841
505,721

694
1,132
710
10,841
24,000

287
34
427
523,934

50
-

34
-

1,065
1,166
1,137
10,841
547,934

519,930

37,377

524,682

50

34

562,143

* Exclude prepayments
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(d) Market risk
(i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the potential financial loss arising from changes in interest rates.
Investment decisions shall always take into consideration the appropriate and prevailing risk adjusted returns available in the
marketplace. The focus on maximising returns shall always be bounded by a tempered approach to risk that is acceptable for the
Company’s funds. There shall be no over concentration of investments in single counterparties, and there shall be appropriate
investment diversification across industries to mitigate these risks.
The following tables provide the sensitivity analysis, showing the impact on the profit after tax and equity given the change in variables.

Impact on equity

31 December 2021

Impact on profit after tax
RM'000

Up to a year
RM'000

> 1 year
to 3 years
RM'000

> 3 years
to 5 years
RM'000

(1,310)
1,318
(2,612)
2,643

(325)
328
(645)
661

> 5 years
RM'000

Total
RM'000

Change in variable
+
+
-

25 basis points
25 basis points
50 basis points
50 basis points

-

123

(51)
52
(103)
103

(4,001)
4,137
(7,871)
8,415

(5,687)
5,835
(11,231)
11,822
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(d) Market risk (continued)
(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

31 December 2020

Impact on profit after tax
RM'000

Up to a year
RM'000

> 1 year
to 3 years
RM'000

Impact on equity
> 3 years
to 5 years
> 5 years
RM'000
RM'000

Total
RM'000

Change in variable
+
+
-

25 basis points
25 basis points
50 basis points
50 basis points

-

124

(150)
(4)
(223)
69

(1,958)
1,090
(3,466)
2,629

(5,429)
(2,894)
(6,680)
(1,609)

(6,243)
6,112
(12,114)
12,613

(13,780)
4,304
(22,483)
13,702
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FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
(d)

Market risk (continued)
(ii)

Foreign currency risk
The Company is currently not exposed to any currency risk as all transactions
were transacted in Ringgit Malaysia denominated currency.

(iii)

Price risk
The Company is currently not exposed to any equity and properties, and hence not
affected by price risk.

(e)

Insurance risk
Insurance risk arises when the accumulated guarantee premiums charged are
insufficient to cover the cost of claims arising from the insurer's underwritten
commitment.
In minimising the insurance risk, the Company’s portfolio is spread over a diversified mix
of businesses, and the Company observes specific guidelines governing the prudential
limits on exposure to a single company/group and to an industry or business sector.
Besides, the Company adopts risk-based pricing model developed according to the
principles of its Premium Pricing Policy, ensuring that the premium fee determined is
adequate to cover the underlying risk costs. Insurance risk is managed by the Risk
Management function together with other divisions, primirily the Client Coverage Division
which is in charge of the inital underwriting process and the Client Solutions Division that
undertakes the continuous surveillance process on all obligors.

(f)

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems or from external events. The risk is managed through established
operational risk management processes, proper monitoring and reporting of the business
units’ adherence to established risk policies, procedures and limits by independent
control and support units, and oversight provided by the management and the Board.
The operational risk management processes encompass appropriate documentation of
processes and procedures within the framework of system of internal controls, regular
disaster recovery and business continuity planning and simulations, self-compliance audit
and internal audit.
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The Company’s activities are organised by funds and segregated into Shareholders' Fund and Insurance Fund in accordance with the FSA.
The Company’s statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income have been further analysed by Shareholders' Fund and Insurance
Fund.
Statement of Financial Position
Shareholders' Fund
As at
As at
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Available-for-sale securities
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with licensed
banks
Insurance receivables
Claim recoverable
Reinsurance assets
Tax recoverable
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS
126

Insurance Fund
As at
As at
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

Total
As at
2021
RM'000

As at
2020
RM'000

-

-

344
518
593
734,353
20,514
95,806
618,033

777
578
1,132
770,108
31,220
80,153
658,735

344
518
593
734,353
20,514
95,806
618,033

777
578
1,132
770,108
31,220
80,153
658,735

-

-

1,718,789
196,759
27,303
642
12,023
5,745
6,134
2,703,203

1,672,692
225,898
4,026
30,560
6,250
1,681
2,713,702

1,718,789
196,759
27,303
642
12,023
5,745
6,134
2,703,203

1,672,692
225,898
4,026
30,560
6,250
1,681
2,713,702

Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
38 INSURANCE FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Financial Position (continued)
Shareholders' Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

Insurance Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

Total
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

505,721

261,598
604
427
1,146
9,212
5,184
-

298,449
1,166
1,137
1,065
10,841
10,861
-

261,598
604
427
1,146
9,212
5,184
505,721

298,449
1,166
1,137
1,065
10,841
10,861
505,721

2,406,483
2,684,654

2,352,193
2,675,712

783,892

829,240

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Premium liabilities
Lease liabilities
Insurance payables
Deferred income
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated Sukuk
Amount due (from)/to Shareholders'/
Insurance funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

(2,406,483)
(1,900,762)

(2,352,193)
(1,846,472)

Share capital
Retained earnings
Contingency reserve
Available-for-sale fair value reserve
TOTAL EQUITY

1,000,000
887,532
13,230
1,900,762

1,000,000
831,265
15,207
1,846,472

18,549
18,549

37,990
37,990

1,000,000
887,532
13,230
18,549
1,919,311

1,000,000
831,265
15,207
37,990
1,884,462

-

-

2,703,203

2,713,702

2,703,203

2,713,702

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Shareholders' Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

Insurance Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

Total
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

Gross earned premiums
Premiums ceded to reinsurance

-

-

48,232
(3,384)

69,517
361

48,232
(3,384)

69,517
361

Net earned premiums
Investment income
Realised gains
Other operating income

-

-

44,848
72,378
3,078
2,751

69,878
88,894
9,373
1,036

44,848
72,378
3,078
2,751

69,878
88,894
9,373
1,036

-

-

123,055

169,181
(80,413)
80,443
30
(34,863)
(133)
134,215
(31,118)
103,097

123,055

169,181
(80,413)
80,443
30
(37,642)
(24,199)
107,370
(31,118)
76,252

Gross claim paid
Claim recovery
Change in gross/net claim liabilities
Net claim recovered
Management expenses
Finance cost
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Net (loss)/profit for the financial year

(3,293)
(24,000)
(27,293)
(27,293)
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(2,779)
(24,066)
(26,845)
(26,845)

27,303
27,303
(33,197)
(75)
117,086
(27,903)
89,183

27,303
27,303
(36,490)
(24,075)
89,793
(27,903)
61,890

Registration No.
2009011011656 (854686-K)

DANAJAMIN NASIONAL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)
38 INSURANCE FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)
Shareholders' Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that may be subsequently reclassified
to the income statement:
Available-for-sale fair value reserve:
Net (loss)/gain arising during the
financial year
Net gain transferred to profit or loss upon
disposal
Tax effect thereon
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for
the financial year, net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the financial year

Total
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

-

-

(22,502)

16,469

(22,502)

16,469

-

-

(3,078)
6,139

(9,373)
(1,703)

(3,078)
6,139

(9,373)
(1,703)

-

-

(19,441)

5,393

(19,441)

5,393

42,449

81,645

(27,293)
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Insurance Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

(26,845)

69,742

108,490
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Information on Cash Flows by Funds
Shareholders' Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000
Cash flows from:
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents
At beginning of the financial year

31,600
(31,600)

At end of the financial year

130

24,000
(24,000)

Insurance Fund
2020
2021
RM'000
RM'000

Total
2021
RM'000

2020
RM'000

25,982
(422)
(26,190)

6,704
(495)
(1,756)

1,982
(422)
(2,190)

38,304
(495)
(33,356)

-

-

4,453
1,681

(630)
2,311

4,453
1,681

(630)
2,311

-

-

6,134

1,681

6,134

1,681
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39 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENTS TO MFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACTS
The Company’s business activities are predominantly insurance as the liabilities connected with
the Company’s insurance businesses made up of more than 90% of the Company’s total
liabilities. Hence, the Company qualifies for the temporary exemption from applying MFRS 9
Financial Instruments and will defer and adopt MFRS 9 together with MFRS 17 Insurance
Contracts for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
The following additional disclosures, required by Amendments to MFRS 4 for entity qualified and
elected the temporary exemption from applying MFRS 9, present the Company’s financial assets
by their contractual cash flows characteristics, which indicate if they are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding (“SPPI”):

As at 31 December 2021
Fair value at end of reporting date
Fair value changes during the financial year
Gross carrying amounts under MFRS 139 by
credit risk rating grades as defined in MFRS 7
Financial assets defined in MFRS 9 B5.5.22,
to separately disclose the following financial
assets that do not have low credit risk :
Fair value
•
Gross carrying amount
•
As at 31 December 2020
Fair value at end of reporting date
Fair value changes during the financial year
Gross carrying amounts under MFRS 139 by
credit risk rating grades as defined in MFRS 7
Financial assets defined in MFRS 9 B5.5.22,
to separately disclose the following financial
assets that do not have low credit risk :
Fair value
•
Gross carrying amount
•

Financial assets with
SPPI cash flows
(RM'000)
2,464,039
(25,580)

All other financial
assets
(RM'000)
-

2,464,039

-

-

-

2,449,702
7,096

-

2,449,702

-

-

(a)

Insurance receivables and reinsurance assets have been excluded from the above
assessment as they are under the scope of MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’.

(b)

Tax recoverable has been excluded from the above assessment as it is under the scope of
MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes’.

(c)

Other than the financial assets included in the table above and assets that are within the
scope of MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and MFRS 112 ‘Income Taxes’, all other assets
in the statement of financial position are non-financial assets.
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39 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENTS TO MFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets with SPPI cash flows
Neither past-due nor impaired

31 December 2021
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with
licenced banks
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Government
A2 guaranteed
RM'000
RM'000

AAA
RM'000

AA1
RM'000

AA2
RM'000

AA3
RM'000

A1
RM'000

35,321

66,049

216,665

-

170,721

-

78,829
1,075

-

645,072
-

703,060
5,059

191,064
-

115,225

66,049

861,737

708,119

361,785

* Exclude prepayments

All financial assets with SPPI cash flows of the Company as at 31 December 2021 have low credit risk.
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Unrated
RM'000

Total
RM'000

20,514
95,806
129,277

-

20,514
95,806
618,033

100,764
-

-

4,763
-

1,718,789
4,763
6,134

100,764

245,597

4,763

2,464,039
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39 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER AMENDMENTS TO MFRS 4 INSURANCE CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)
Financial assets with SPPI cash flows (continued)
Neither past-due nor impaired

31 December 2020
Available-for-sale securities:
Malaysian Government Securities
Government Investment Issues
Corporate debt securities
Deposits and placements with
licenced banks
Other assets *
Cash and cash equivalents

Government
A2 guaranteed
RM'000
RM'000

AAA
RM'000

AA1
RM'000

AA2
RM'000

AA3
RM'000

A1
RM'000

25,805

67,431

210,185

-

172,668

-

35,649
1,029

-

623,342
496

696,746
156

216,758
-

62,483

67,431

834,023

696,902

389,426

* Exclude prepayments

All financial assets with SPPI cash flows of the Company as at 31 December 2020 have low credit risk.
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Unrated
RM'000

Total
RM'000

31,220
80,153
182,646

-

31,220
80,153
658,735

100,197
-

-

5,221
-

1,672,692
5,221
1,681

100,197

294,019

5,221

2,449,702
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
a)

On the local front, Malaysia has not been spared and since the first implementation of
Movement Control Order (“MCO”) in March 2020, there have been several impositions of
MCOs at varying degrees of seriousness, leading to much anxiety amongst the business
community as they struggle to overcome the disruptions brought upon by pandemic.
Based on the Company’s assessment in December 2021, the Covid-19 has continued to
put a strain on the cash flows of certain obligors of the Company and their ability to meet
the build-up of the guarantee fees and/or service coupon/profit payments in 2021 based
on their respective financial guarantee contracts on a timely basis. In addition, there
could be further requests by obligors for temporary exemptions in meeting the covenants
in the financial guarantee contracts such as deferment in building up of the coupon,
principal and/or guarantee fees build-up, and even a restructuring and/or refinancing of
the existing contracts to better match the obligors' expected cash flow projections. This
may lead to deterioration in the obligors' credit ratings and hence, an increase in
premium liabilities.
The impact of Covid-19 and its variants on the Company's business and results are
limited except for on premium liabilities which impact the Company has incorporated into
its assessment as disclosed in Note 13 although the full impact cannot be reliably
estimated based on current available data. The Company is closely monitoring the
developing situation and the potential impact of the resurgence of Covid-19 on its
operations.

b)

On 30 September 2021, BPMB announced the signing of agreements with Credit
Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad and Minister of Finance (Incorporated) for the
100% acquisition of Danajamin Nasional Berhad. The acquisition is part of the Malaysian
Government's medium term plan to strengthen and align the mandates of development
financial institutions to improve the national development finance ecosystem. The
Company will complement BPMB’s existing business and product offerings, with the
merger synergies expected to benefit Malaysian businesses, enhancing their access to
capital markets and capital in general.
The transfer process in relation to BPMB’s acquisition of shares held by Minister of
Finance (Incorporated) and Credit Guarantee Corporation Malaysia Berhad of
500,000,000 ordinary shares each in the Company was completed on 22 December
2021. Pursuant thereto, BPMB is the sole registered shareholder of the Company
effective 22 December 2021.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The Company received payment for claim recoverable amounting to RM27,302,597 on 27
January 2022. This relates to the distribution settlement amount receivable from the corporate
guarantor of the obligor which the Company fully setlled the claim on 6 March 2020. The
financial impact has been adjusted for in the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.
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